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Terms used in this report

United Utihities PLC “‘UU PLC’ 1s the intermediate holding company of the UK’s largest listed water
business The ‘company’ means United Utilities PLC, the ‘group’ means Umted Utilities PLC and its
subsidiary undertakings, ‘UUG’ means United Utilities Group PLC and ‘UUG group’ or ‘United Utilities’
means United Utilities Group PLC (see note 30) and its subsidiary undertakings The ‘regulated business’,
‘regulated activities’ or ‘UUW’ means the heensed water and wastewater activities undertaken by United
Utilities Water PLC in the North West of England (see note 13)

Cautionary statement

The Report and Financial Statements (the Report) contains certain forward-looking statements with respect
to the operations, performance and financial condition of the group By thewr nature, these statements
involve uncertainty since future events and circumstances can cause results and developments to differ
materially from those anticipated The forward-looking statements reflect knowledge and mformation
available at the date of preparation of this Report and the company undertakes no obligation to update these
forward-looking statements Nothing 1n this Report should be construed as a profit forecast Certain
regulatory performance data contained i this Report 1s subject to regulatory audit
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement

We are confident that our strategy and renewed focus on operational performance will enable United
Uttliues to create value and dehver cur commitments to our customers, shareholder and the environment

Strategy

Following the completion of the UUG group’s non-regulated disposal programme, we set out our vision
of becommg a leading North West service provider and one of the best UK water and wastewater
companies We said that our enhanced focus on the regulated business will enable us to deliver further
customer service and operational efficiency improvements We aim to outperform the regulatory contract
and deliver long-terin shareholder value by providing the best service to customers, at the lowest
sustainable cost and 1n a responsible manner

During the last 12 months we have contmued on our joumey towards achieving our vision and we are
pleased to report a good set of results in what 1s a tough economic chimate We have delivered improved
customer satisfaction tn our service and we remain on course to meet our regulatory outperformance
targets, with significant financing outperformance already secured

We have continued to make high tevels of capital investment 1n our water and wastewater assets providing
further benefits for our customers, shareholder and the environment

Dividend
No final dividend has been recommended for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 £nil pence per
ordinary share})

Operational performance

Commensurate with our focus on customer service and operational performance we have continued to
mplement a wide range of busmess improvement mutiatives  Our revised customer handiing
arrangements have led to a marked improvement in customer satisfaction, resulting in significant progress
on Ofwat’s service incentive mechanism We have built on our progress last year, reducing customer
complaints by over a quarter 1n the last 12 months and achieving our lowest ever level of referrals to the
Consumer Council for Water We are pleased with the recent progress we have made and believe there 1s
plenty of opportunity to deliver further improvements

We have m place key performance indicators (KPls) to provide visibility of our operational performance
in the areas of best service to customers, lowest sustamabte cost and responsible manner These measures
are used across the UUG group to focus our people on targets for improvement and to demonstrate the
progress being made

Dehvering our regulatory contract '

We have continued to make good progress throughout the first two years of this regulatory period and
mvestment 1n our assets has remained at high levels, helping the business meet strict environmental
standards and deliver an improved service for our customers Caputal expenditure in our water and
wastewater business amounted to £680 million during the year, consistent with our planned investment
programme over the 201015 period

Customers

During 2011/12 our household cusiomers have benefited from an average real reduction in their water
bills of 0 2 per cent, following on from a 4 3 per cent real decrease in 2010/11 Despite this reduction 1n
average customer bills, we have continued to invest heavily 1n our assets in order to ensure that we can
continue to provide our customers with high quality drinking water to meet all therr daily needs and
environmentally responsible wastewater collection and treatment

Our water and wastewater service currently costs households just over £1 per day on average We believe
this continues to represent excellent value for money for our customers We recogmse that we need to
maintain the affordability of customer bills, in what continues to be a tough economic environment, and
we continue to fund our Charitable Trust, providing £5 million per year to help customers who are
struggling to pay their water bills
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement (continued)

Regulatory developments

The government published a Water Whate Paper *Water for Life’ in December 2011 which reaffirmed the
success of the privatisation of the water ndustry, with companies having invested over £90 billion to
maintain and 1mprove assets, customer service and the environment  The paper mghlights that the water
industry needs to evolve n order to meet the challenges arising from factors such as chimate change and a
growing population to help ensure that high quality water 1s supphed rehably while remaming affordable

We are pleased that the government recogmised the need for evolutionary, rather than revolutionary,
changes to the successful existing water model We agree that a step-by-step approach to increasing
competition for non-demestic customers, as outhned n the paper, 1s sensible provided sufficient time and
effort goes into 1ts preparation in what will represent a sigmficant change for the industry

We are in agreement with many of the long-term aims set out in the Water White Paper such as tackling
over abstraction, water pollution, affordability and water efficiency as well as protecting water resources
and the natural environment We have been closely engaged in the dialogue with the government and its
regulators on these matters and will continue to take an active part in shaping the response the sector can
make to address the 1ssues raised in the Water White Paper

Responsible business

The board of directors of UUG (the board) are responsible to their shareholders, customers and other
stakeholders for the performance and long-term success of the UUG group The way in which the board
operates, we believe, already reflects the highest standards of corporate governance The board continues
to monitor closely new developments and requirements 1n this area and have updated our statement of
responsible business practice, called our Business Principles, this year to ensure these standards underpin
our business strategy

The board continues to histen to the views of all stakeholders and endeavour to develop, manage and
operate 1n an environmentally sustainable, economically beneficial and socially responsible manner In
recagnition of UUG’s continued focus on responsible business, UUG retamed its ‘ World Class’ rating, as
measured by the Dow Jones Sustainability Index UUG also retained its ‘Platinum Plus’ ranking n the
Business i the Community Corporate Responsibility Index and are proud that (t 15 one of only six FTSE
100 companies to hold both

The communities in which we operate are of great importance to our business and we have continued our
mvestment 1n these communities of the North West both financially and in terms of employee time
through volunteering

Our employees

The people in United Utilities are key to the delivery of the highest levels of service 1o our customers and
we would like again to thank them for their dedication and continued hard work during the year We
believe that a committed, capabie and motivated workforce 1s central to delivering our vision and we
retnain fully focused on maintaining high levels of employee development and engagement

The safety and well-being of our employees 15 paramount and we believe that everybody i United
Utihties, collectively and individually, has a part to play in mamtaiming a safe working environment
Although we have seen a reduction in employee accident rates m 2011/12, there 1s more to do and we will
continue to give this area sigmificant focus

On behalf of the group board, we say thank you and farewell to David Jones, who wtll stand down at this
year’s UUG annual general meeting after over seven years as a non-executive director for UUG ~ We
wish David all the best for the future

We are pleased to welcome Sara Weller to the group board as a non-executive director following her
appowntment in March Her undersianding of customer facing businesses, together with her knowledge of
operating within a regulated environment, will be major assets to the board On David’s departure, Sara
will take over his position as chair of the group’s Remuneration Coramittee
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement (continued)

Outlook

We believe that our sharp focus on customer service and operational efficiency 1s dehivering results  The
action ptans bemg implemented are delivering efficiencies and we remain on track to meet our regulatory
targets, with substantial financing outperformance already secured The board 1s encouraged with our
continuing progress over the first two years of the 2010-15 regulatory penod and we are confident we can
continue to build on this progress throughout the remainder of the period The UUG group’s capital
structure remains robust and we have a sustainable dividend palicy that targets real growth through to at
least 2015 In the area of regulatory and political developments, we will continue to work with politicians,
regulators and all key parties to represent the best interests of our stakeholders

Steve Mogford
Chief Executive Officer, Umited Unlities PLC
1 June 2052
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Business review

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The group monitors a range of financial and operational key performance indicators (KPlIs) to enhance the

visibility of our performance and to help drive improvements

2011/12
Financial KPIs
Revenue £1,564 9m
Underlying " operating profit £594 Im
Underlying V profit after taxation £266 Tm
Regulatory capital expenditure £680m
Geaning net debt to regulatory capital value 59%

Operational KPIs

Best service to customers
Serviceability ¥ 1 x improving,
2 x stable, | x marginal
Service incentive mechamism — qualitative (relative) ® 16

Service incentive mechanism — quantitative (absolute) 273

Lowest sustamable cost

Opex outperformance (2010-15 target of at least £50m) On track
Financing outperformance (2010-15 target of at least £300m) On track
Capex outperformance (2010-15 target to meet regulatory allowance) On track

Responsible manner

Leakage — rolling average annual leakage 453MI/d — Met target
Environment Agency performance assessment © 7th
Dow Jones Sustainability Index rating ‘World Class’

Notes:
{1) See pages 27 and 28 for explanation

2010/H

£1,5133m
£596 4m
£260 4m
£608m
59%

I x marginal
3 x stable
21

539

On track
On track
On track

464M1/d — Met target

o6th
‘World Class’

{2) 2011/12 ratings subject to regulatory assessment 2010711 ratngs have been restated from “4 x stable” following regulatory

assessment
(3) Performance relative to 21 water compantes
(4} Low number mdicates good performance 2011/12 number subject to regulatory audit

(5) Performance relative to 10 water and wastewater companies and relating to 2010/11 and 2009/10, being the latest available

assessments from the Environment Agency
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Business review (continued)

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Our industry

Water and wastewater services are provided by 21 companies to more than 50 million customers across
England and Wales There are currently 10 licensed companies which provide both water and wastewater
services to customers in their respective regions  Additionally, there are licensed regtonal companies
which provide water only services and tend to be smaller in size  As each company in the water sector
operates as a regional monopoly for 1ts services, they are subject to regulation in terms of both price and
performance

The privatisation of the industry over two decades ago has been widely percerved as a success 1t has led to
improvements 1n the quality of services provided to customers, higher environmental standards and
superior quahty drinking water at lower estimated costs to customers than if the water sector was still in
public ownership The water sector economic regulator, Ofwat, estimates that water bills are on average
more than £100 lower per annum than they otherwise would have been The water industry currently
invests around £80 million a week 1n mamntaining and unproving assets and services

The UUG group

Umted Utilities Group PLC 15 the UK’s largest listed water company The UUG group owns and manages
the regulated water and wastewater network 1 the North West of England, through 1ts subsidiary Umited
Utilies Water PLC (UUW), which constitutes the vast majority of the UUG group’s assets and profit In
light of this, the UU PLC group now has a single segment for financial reporting purposes

Where we operate

UUW holds licences to provide waler and wastewater services to a population of approximately seven
million people 1n the North West of England The area we cover includes the major cities of Manchester
and Liverpool but also extends as far north as the Cumbrian—-Scottish border and south beyond Crewe

From Crewe to Carlisle, the company keeps the North West flowing through
56,000 hectares of catchment land

180 reservoirs

94 water treatment works

569 wastewater treatment works

42,000 km of water pipes

76,000 km of sewer pipes

5,096 employees

Water and wastewater operations

Almost 2,000 milhon litres of water 1s supplied every day to approximately 3 2 mullion homes and
businesses Water 1s collected from catchment land and other sources and stored n reservoirs before being
treated and then delivered via a network of pipes to homes and industry A large proportion of the water
supphed flows freely by gravity and does not need to be pumped, reducing energy consumption and the
carbon impact on the environment

Wastewater 15 collected using a network of sewers and treated before bemg retumed safely to the
environment A by-product of the treatment of wastewater s sewage sludge, which s treated further to
produce an end product suitable for safe disposal whilst providing renewable energy generation

Our water and wastewater service currently costs households just over £1 per day on average Over the
2010-15 regulatory period, the average annual bill will fall by £9 in real terms  We believe this represents
excellent value for money, providing our customers with hugh quahty drinking water to meet all ther daily
needs and for environmentally responsible wastewater collection and treatment
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Business review (continued)

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (continued)

Our vision
Qur vision 15 to become
s A leading North West service provider
e  One of the best water and wastewater companies

Our values
To achieve our vision we will operate under the following key core values
s  Customer focus - Providing services that our customers can rely on
s Integrity - Applying the highest standards of responsible business practice
s Innovation - Encouraging new 1deas to make our services better, faster or cheaper

Our objectives
Our aim 1s to deliver long-term shareholder value

s The best service to customers - Delivering excellent services to our customers by anticipating and

responding to their needs

s At the lowest sustainable cost - Providing our services as effectively as possible at the lowest cost

that can be sustamned over the long-term

s In a responsible manner - Managing responsibly our relationship with the environment, society,

local communities and our employees

We expect continued growth n our busmess through our extensive capital investment programme,

investing to 1mprove our networks and service

We are confident of delivering significant efficiencies across the current 2010-15 penod in order to meet

and outperform the regulatory contract

We expect to provide sustainable real growth in the UUG dividend whilst retamning a robust capital

structure

Our approach to doing business

. The group 1s committed to delivering our services in a responsible way and our approach to respensible
business practice 1s set out in our Business Principles document This states that for the group, being a
responsible business means providing a great service to our customers, working to protect and enhance our
environment, actively supporting our local communities, supporting our employees to achieve their fuli
potential m a safe workplace, and delivering good value to our other stakeholders whilst managing our

supply chain fairly

Customers: Qur aim s to protect public health and provide excellent services te our customers This
means removing the need for customers to contact us unnecessarily to taking ownership of queries,

satisfactorily resolving them as quickly as possible and keeping our customers mformed along the way
We amm to provide bulls that represent good value for money

Environment® Whether 1t’s treating and delivering drinking water for our customers, or returning treated
wastewater to rivers and the sea, we’re acutely aware of our responsibihty to the environment We

continue to mvest to protect and, where appropriate, enhance the natural environment of the North West
We continue to consider the impacts of climate change on the services we deliver and adapt accordingly

Commumtses: The communities i which we operate are of great importance to our business — it 1s where
our customers and employees live and work We contmue to nvest n our local commumities both
financially and through employee volunteering We recognise the effect that our operations can have upon

the community and invest 1n programmes that support affected areas or help tackle current social 1ssues
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Business review (continued)

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (continued)

Employees; Health and safety 1s paramount and we strongly focus on our health and safety performance
High employee engagement 1s a key contributor to our performance and we place significant emphasis on
mamtaining and strengthening levels of engagement Our policies on matermty, paternity, adoption,
personal and special leave go beyond the minimum required by law For disabled applicants and existing
employees, we are commutted to fulfilling our obligations in accordance with the relevant legislation
Applicants with disabilities are given equal consideration in the application process  Dhsabled colleagues
have equipment and working practices modified for them as far as possible and wherever 1t 1s safe and
practical to do so

Other stakeholders: We are committed to honouring our responsibility to UUG’s shareholders, credit
mvestors and those who provide us with goods and services We aim to operate as effectivety as possible
at the lowest sustainable cost and to retain a robust and sustainable financial profile to provide enduring
shareholder value We work with suppliers whose business principles, conduct, and standards align with
our own Qur key suppliers have committed to our Sustainable Supply Chain Charter, supporting us n the
delivery of wider social, economic and environmental benefits More detail on the regulatory environment
in which we operate 1s provided on pages 9 -12

Given the long life of our infrastructure, we take a long-term view of our operations and key to the group’s
strategic objectives 1s the goal to operate in a more sustainable manner Sustainabihity 1s fundamental to
the manner in which we undertake our business and the group has for many years included corporate
responsibility (CR) factors as a strategic consideration in 1ts decisien making The UUG board-level CR
commutiee develops and oversees our CR strategy and this contmung focus helped the UUG group retamn
its Dow Jones Sustainabihty Index ‘World Class’ rating and 1ts ‘Platinum Plus’ ranking in the Business 1n
the Community CR Index Details of our responsible business performance for the year can be found on
pages 17 - 28

Competitive environment and regulation
As services 1n England and Wales are not provided in competitive markets, with only large business
customers able to choose their supplier, the industry 1s heavaly regulated

Economic regulation

Economic regulation 1s the responsibility of an mdependent body, Ofwat, whose primary duties are to
protect the nterests of consumers, to ensure that compantes property carry out therr functions and to ensure
that compames can finance their functions  As part of its periodic review, Ofwat sets imits on the average
annual increase 1 charges that a water company can impose across each price control period (usually five
years)

The regulatory capital value (RCV) of a water company 1s a measure of its capial base which 1s used when
Ofwat sets price hmits  Capital expenditure to enhance and maintain the network as well as inflation 15
added to the RCV, while depreciation 1s deducted

An atlowed return on the RCV 15 set by Ofwat to ensure water companies can secure a reasonable return on
their capstal 1n order to finance their functions Operating costs (subject to an efficiency target), as well as
depreciation and tax are added to this allowed return In addition, adjustments depending on each
company’s relative performance are added or deducted to derive the allowed revenue for each water
company

Based on each company's calculated allowed revenue across the regulatory period, Ofwat publishes annual
price limits 1 1its final price determination The price limuts for each company are set by reference to
mflation as measured by the retall prices index (RPI), plus an adjustment factor known as ‘K’ A
company’s annual ‘K’ factor, therefore, shows the amount above or below nflatton that it 15 allowed by
Ofwat to change its price by for that financial year
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Business review (continued)

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (continued)

Price cap regulation n the UK 1s performance-based and companies are incentivised to be efficient m
terms of their operating costs, capital programmes and financing  The benefit of any efficiency savings
achieved through effective management 1s retained by the compames for a period of five years, after which
time the benefit 1s passed to the customers via the subsequent price setting process The cost of any under-
performance or falure to deliver specified output requirements, due to poor management 1s borne by the
group Companies are alsg incentivised to provide high standards of service and can be penalised 1if these
standards are not achieved, primanly by means of an adjustment to the ‘K’ factor at the subsequent price
review

Our current price hmuts (pubhished in November 2009)
UUW’s profile of price lmits for the five-year period 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2015 1s set out below

Year 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
K factor -4 3% -02% +0 6% +1 0% +12%

Ofwat’s final determination of price hmits for UUW was based on

a capital investment programme of approximately £3 5 billion,
12 per cent, or approximately £900 million, real growth in the RCV over the five years,
an average annual underlying operating efficiency improvement of | 2 per cent for the water
service and 2 4 per cent for the wastewater service, and
¢ areturn on capital of 4 5 per cent (post-tax, real)

Every year, all water companies are required to publish details of their annual financial and operational
performance Ofwat uses this information and other data to monitor and compare companies’ performance
both tndividually and relative to the other water companies across a wide range of measures This includes
key performance indicators such as Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM), Serviceability and Leakage (see

page 6)

Environmental and quality regulation

The water and wastewater industry in the UK 15 subject to substantial domestic and EC regulation, placing
significant statutory obligations on water and wastewater companies with regard to, amongst other factors,
the quality of treated water supplied, wastewater treatment and the effects of their activities on the natural
environment

All water and wastewater companies have a general duty to exercise their powers to protect and, where
appropriate, enhance the natural environment and to promote the efficient use of water Environmental
regulation s the responsibility of the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs together
with
e the Envircnment Agency (EA), which 1s responsible for conserving and redistrnibuting water
resources and securing their proper use, including the licensing of water abstraction The EA also
regulates discharges to controlled waters The EA produces a composite index, measuring the
relative annual environmental performance of the 10 water and wastewater companies This 1s
included as one of our key performance indicators, see page 6,
the Drinking Water Inspectorate, which enforces drinking water quahity standards, and
Natural England, which 1s responsible for the protection of designated sites for nature
conservation, e g Sttes of Special Scientific Interest There 1s a statutory requirement to manage
these sites to protect and enhance brodiversity

Further developments in the regulatory regime are expected to take effect in the next few years, n
particular as a result of European Union environmental imtiatives (mcluding the Water Framework
Directive and the revised Drinking Water Directive) The umpacts of the Natural Environment and Water
White Papers, pubhshed in 2011, will also affect the regulatory environment in which we operate
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Business review (continued)

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (continued)

Competitors

One of the UUG group’s fundamental medium to long-term goals 15 to become the one of the best UK
water and wastewater (or sewerage) companies (WaSC) The group’s main competitors are the other nine
WaSCs which operate across England and Wales The group i1s the second largest WaSC based on
regulatory capital value and it, along with the other nine compamies, comprises the vast majornity of the total
water and wastewater sector

Although their relative sizes are generally far smaller than the water and wastewater compamies, the
remaining water only companies are also important competitors as their relative performances are included
in Ofwat’s published comparative mformation

In line with our aspiration to be a leading North West service provider, other large service providers in the
region are also important companies against which to benchmark performance In addition, as UUG 1s a
publicly listed FTSE 100 company, the other UK and European histed utihities are competitors from an
Investment perspective

Direct competition
Asude from comparative competition, there are two man forms of direct competition n the water and
wastewater industry inset appointments and water supply licensing

An 1nset appointment 1s made when an existing undertaker 1s replaced by another as the supplier of water
and/or wastewater services for one or more customers within its licensed area In the last 22 years since
privatisation, less than 20 inset appointments have been granted across the industry

From 1 December 2005, water supply licensees have been able to provide both retail supply (1 e the supply
by a licensee of water purchased from a water undertaker’s supply system to an eligible customer) and
combtned supply (1 ¢ the introduction of water into an incumbent water company’s existing network for
retall by the licensee to an eligible customer} to non-household users with an annual consumption of not
less than 50 megalitres This threshold was lowered to five megalitres a year in December 2011 following
the publication of the UK Government’s Water White Paper ‘Water for life’ A water undertaker 1s
obliged to allow a licensed water supplier to use 1ts network for this purpose, subject to payment of charges
and certain conditions and rights of refusal Only one customer has changed supplier in the six years since
this was implemented

Polttical and regulatory developments

The Water White Paper reaffirmed the success of the privatisation of the water industry, with companies
having invested over £90 billion to maintain and improve assets, customer service and the environment
The paper hightights that the water industry needs to evolve win order to meet the challenges arising from
factors such as climate change and a growing population to help ensure that high quahty water 1s supplied
rehiably while remamning affordable In line with expectations, a draft Water Bill was announced n the
Queen’s Speech on 9 May 2012 and 1s due to be published before Parhament’s summer recess, which
commences on 18 July 2012 In addition, Ofwat published its statement of principles for the 2014 price
review on 15 May 2012

We are pleased that the government recogmsed the need for evolutionary, rather than revolutionary,
changes to the successful existing water model We are in agreement with many of the aims set out 1n this
paper, such as tackling water pollution, over abstraction, affordability and water efficiency, as well as
protecting water and the natural environment Indeed, much of what we already do supports many of the
government’s aspirations
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (continued)

Our sustainable catchment management programme (SCAMP) 1s perhaps the most high profile example of
how we address sustainable abstraction This model has been adopted as best practice 1n the sector We do
benefit from having robust water resources 1 our region and continue to enhance our regional network to
provide resilience to local water stress

We have been undertaking water trading for many years, albeit on a fairly small scale, but certanly have
the petential to do more within the right industry framework In addition to our existing water trading
arrangements, we are looking at further options to help other parts of the country deal with drought
conditions and we have a number of connections which can be used for short periods when required
Looking ahead, there 15 potential to develop more cross-border export options and we are n a strong
position to contribute in such a future market scenario, although we envisage the financial quantum of this
to be fairly small relative to the size of the industry However, water trading 15 not the sole answer to
addressing drought conditions The longer-term answer must be comprehensive and include more large
capacity pipelines, enhanced storage capacity, flexible abstraction and water efficiency measures

We believe that water companies are 1n a umque position to help facilitate the use of scarce water resources
by customers In the area of water efficiency, this 15 something we continue to focus on and United
Utihties has one of the lowest per capita consumption levels 1n the industry Recent measures adopted by
the group include distributing shower regulators and devices to reduce flush volumes n toilets and rolling
out education programmes We believe that more can be done to promote water efficiency and the
company supports the refinement of the regulatory framework to provide companies with mcentives to
encourage the wise use of water

Underpinning all of this, and the plans to increase competition for non-domestic customers, 1s the need to
retamn 1nvestor confidence 1n the sector This 1s of paramount importance and we are pleased that the
strength of the current industry structure will be retained and that the historical regulatory capital value will
be protected Key tssues that are currently undergoing industry consultation include possible modifications
to water companies’ ltcences and the replacement of the ‘costs principle’, which governs access pricing,
along with Ofwat’s proposed average cost to serve methodology for the retai price control  On the matter
of lhcence modifications, we are supportive of the simple changes necessary to implement the
government’s decision for expanded non-domestic competition and those necessary to facilitate the 2014
review With regard to the ‘costs principle’, 1t 1s important that, m order to ensure fair network access, that
any parhamentary bill or act encourages only efficient entry and protects customers not ehgible for
competition from cross-subsidy In respect of retail price controls, we beheve it 15 essential that the
regulator continues to take account of regional socio-economic conditions, addresses reporting
inconsistencies between companies, retamms the RPl mflation link and makes adjustments to reflect the
number of customers that receive only water or wastewater services We will continue with our active
ivolvement on these 1ssues

Economic environment

Following on from a period of recovery since the 2008/09 global financial crisis, it has been a difficult year
for the UK and the wider European economy, with economic news dominated by the ongoing European
debt crisis UK gross domestic product has stagnated during 2011/12 and the equity markets experienced a
highly volatile year

In the UK, RPI inflation has been relatively high over the last couple of years, reaching as high as 5 6 per
cent th September 2011 Our revenues and asset base are linked to inflation, so the high recent levels of
mnflation have increased our reported revenue and RCV  We also have a large quantity of index-linked
debt which means our finance costs increase as inflation rises, providing a partial economic offset 10
revenue, although 1t should be noted that both revenues and financing costs are based on differing lagged
measures of inflation and se do not provide a perfect hedge
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (continued)

In the North West, the unemployment rate remamned above the national average, reaching 9 6 per cent for
the quarter ending March 2012, compared to 82 per cent nationally A report ‘Department for
Communities and Local Government, Indices of Deprivation 2010°, published in March 2011, lighlighted
that the North West had more of the most deprived areas in England than any other region As such,
particularly 1n the current difficult economic conditions, bad debt remains a nsk to which we are exposed,
although Ofwat recogmses this through a special factor allowance, and this continues to be a significant
area of focus for us

Value drivers

QOur bustness continues to grow through our extensive capital investment programme, Investing to improve
our networks and service  Capital expenditure helps to increase our RCV, thus generating growth tn the
asset base of the business, upon which Ofwat allows us an appropnate return

Operating in the North West region, the number of customers we serve i1s relatively stable Whulst there
will be some 1mpact on our revenue due to changes 1n consumption from our metered customers, the mam
driver will be from the allowed change in price we charge our customers, which 1s determimed by Ofwat’s
price control model (as explamed n the economic regulation section on page 9)

As the price control mechanism restricts revenues, not profits, this encourages us to control or reduce our
costs to the lowest possible sustainable levels with the aim of outperforming efficiency targets set by
Ofwat

Operating costs are the largest expense to the group and mmmmising our costs across areas such as
employee costs, power, materials, property rates and service costs 1s important in order to add value to our
group However, minumising costs needs to be done on a sustainable basis and not to the detriment of
customer service or long-term value

In terms of financing costs, Ofwat allows all water compantes an industry wide fixed return on debt over
the regulatory pertod in order to efficiently finance their businesses For the 2010-15 period, this was set at
3 6 per cent plus inflation (pre 1ax) We can generate financing outperformance by locking-in a lower cost
of borrowing than this assumed rate

It 1s also important for our busmess to perform well operationally  Ofwat can apply financial incentives or
penalties depending on our performance, both absolute and relative to our peers, such as on customer
service through its SIM measures The regulator can alse require us to ncur additional unfunded
expenditure if, for example, we are not adequately sustaining our assets or fail to meet environmental
standards or targets, such as leakage

Our key performance indicators (KPIs)

We focus on a range of financial and operational KPIs to help assess our performance We believe that the
KPIs defined below provide a rounded view as to how we are performing against our primary objectives,
helping us on our path to reaching our long-term vision These KPIs encompass the important areas of
customer service and environmental performance, as well as financial indicators, taking consideration of
the interests of all our stakeholders
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (continued)

Fmancial KPls

In respect of our financial KPIs, we use underlying profit measures as these enable more meanmgful
comparnisons of the year-on-year performance of our business

Company cbjective

KPI

Defimition

Growth

Revenue

A defimtion of revenue 1s included n
accounting policies note ¢

Regulatory capital expenditure

Total regulatory capital expenditure during the
year (including infrastructure renewals
expenditure)

Delivering sigmificant
efficiencies

Underlying operating profit

A defimition of operating profit 1s included in
accounting pohicies note a This underlying
measure excludes from the reported operating
profit any restructuring costs and other
significant non-recurring items Reconcihation
1s shown on page 27

Underlying profit after
taxation

This measure deducts underlying net finance
expense and underlying taxation from
underlying operating profit Underlying net
finance expense makes adjustments to the
reported net finance expense, including the
stripping out of fair value movements
Underlying taxation strips out any prior year
adjustments, exceptional tax or any deferred tax
credits or debits arising from changes in the tax
rate from reported taxation A reconciliation
between profit after taxation and underlying
profit after taxation 1s shown on page 27

Robust capital
structure

Gearing net debt to regulatory
capital value

Group net debt (including derivatives) divided
by UUW’s regulatory capital value (Ofwat’s
published RCV n outturn prices adjusted for
actual capital expenditure to date)

14
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (continued)

Operational KPlIs

Company cbjective

KPI

Defimtion

Target

Best service to
customers

Serviceability

Ofwat rates cach company’s
assets as ‘improving’, ‘stable’,
‘marginal’ or ‘deteriorating’
across four categories covering
waler and wastewater
mfrastructure and non-
infrastructure

To hold at least a stable
rating for all four asset
classes, which 1s
consistent with Ofwat’s
target

Service incentive
mechanism —
quahtative

Ofwat derived index based on
quarterly customer satisfaction
surveys, measuring the
absolute and relative
performance of the 21 water
companies Each company
receves a score 1n the range of
zero to five, with five being the
highest attainable score

To move to the first
quartile n the medium-
term

Service incentive
mechamsm —
quantitative

Ofwat derived composite index
based on the number of
customer contacts, assessed by
type, measuring the absolute
and relative performance of the
21| water companies Each
company receives a SIM pont
total, where the lowest score
represents the best

To move to the first
quarttle in the medium-
term

performance
Lowest sustamnable cost | Opex Progress to date on cumulative | Total opex
outperformance operating expenditure outperformance over the
outperformance versus Ofwat’s | 2010-15 peried of at
allowed operating costs over least £50m
the 2010-15 period
Financing Progress to date on financing Total financing
outperformance expenditure outperformance outperformance over the
secured versus Ofwat’s 2010~15 pertod of at
allowed cost of debt of 3 6% least £300m
real over the 2010-15 period
Capex Capital expenditure progress to | To meet Ofwat’s revised
outperformance date against Ofwat’s capital capital expenditure

expenditure allowance for the
2010-15 period, after
adjusting, through the
regulatory methodology, for
the impact of construction
output prices

allowance for the 2010-
15 period
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (continued)

Operational KPIs (continued)

Company objective KPI

Defimtion

Target

Responsible manner Leakage — rolling

average annual

Average annual water leakage
from network quantified 1n

To meet our regulatory
leakage target, as set by

Index rating

MEtrics covering economic,
environmental, social and
governance performance

leakage megalitres per day Ofwat, each year
Environment Composite index produced by | To move to the first
Agency the Environment Agency, quartile m the medum-
performance measuring the absolute and term
assessment relative performance, across a

broad range of areas including

pollution, of the 10 water and

wastewater companies
Dow Jones Rating awarded to company by | To retam UUG’s ‘World
Sustamability Dow Jones using sustainability | Class’ rating each year

A table showing our KPIs for the current year and their prior year comparators can be found on page 6
Our performance and the progress we have made aganst our objectives and thewr associated KPls are
included within the performance section on pages 17 to 28

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Continuing operafions

Underlying operating profit "
Underlying profit before taxation ‘)
Underlying profit after taxation "

Revenue

Operating profit
Profit before taxation
Profit after taxation

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£m £m

594 1 596 4

3619 3587

2667 260 4

1,564 9 1,513 3

5915 5802

3153 356 6

3309 3753

(1) Underlymg profit measures have been provided to give a more representative view of business performance and are defined w the

underlying profit measure tables on pages 27 and 28

prior year

Further customer service improvements delivered significantly improved Ofwat SIM scores
Met regulatory leakage target for sixth consecutive year
On track to meet regulatory outperformance targets

Continued progress on capex programme invested £680 milhion, an increase of 12 per cent on

¢ Underlying operatng profit of £594 million down £2 mullion reflecting higher infrastructure

renewals expenditure

¢ Robust financial position substantially repaid all term debt due 1n 2010-15 period
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

United Utihities aims to dehver long-term shareholder value by providing
e the best service to customers,
e at the lowest sustainable cost,
¢ 1n aresponsible manner

Operational performance and customer service are top priorities for United Unlities and the group aims to
deliver sigmficant improvements in these areas and outperform its regulatory contract  The business has a
range of key performance mdicators (KPIs) to enhance the visibility of 1ts performance and help drive
improvements

Supporting our drive to improve operational performance, a revised management structure was put 1n place
earlier m the year with a strong focus on accountabity and dehvery The group has moved, from its
previous functional structure, to an organisational structure and managers are now responstble for end to
end delivery of capital projects and operational performance within therr respective regions, providing a
more integrated approach This revised management structure 1s now well embedded m the business and 1s
helping to deliver performance improvements A ‘whole company’ scorecard has also been introduced and
short-term incentives are now more directly aligned with operational performance Long-term incentives
are aligned with our shareholder’s and customers’ mnterests, being linked to the UUG group’s total
shareholder return and regulatory outperformance

Best service to customers

Actions:

Customer imitiatives — We established a customer experience programme last year to help understand
better the needs and 1ssues of our customers and this 1s already delivering improvements n the levels of
customer service we are providing We offer additional contact options for customers, such as an online
account management facility, to provide more choices as to when and how they can contact us Staff
availability has been extended, coupled with an onhne call back facility A prionty 1s to umprove customer
data management to ensure this provides a single view of the customer to help improve the efficiency and
quahty of service We have focused on root cause analysis to help us understand better the reasons for
customers contacting us Supporting this customer experience programme, we increased staff training,
better aligned staff tncentive mechanisms, put new service level arrangements n place and we proactively
contact customers to keep them informed of progress in respect of their enquiries We have extended our
focus to identifying potential customer queries i advance, through, for example, more proactive exception
bilhng reporting and contacting the customer before the bull 1s sent to discuss the matter Operationally, we
are aiming for prompt completion of jobs and, where practicable, via a single visit, to improve the
customer experience and reduce the need for unnecessary calls We are also making ongoing
improvements to our processes based on customer feedback

We have made a significant improvement in our performance on Ofwat’s service ncentive mechamsm
(SIM), reflecting our increased focus on dealing with customer enquiries The number of customer
complaints made to the Consumer Council for Water (CCW) has reduced by 27 per cent 1n 2011/12,
compared with last year, following a similar improvement 1n the previous year This represents a reduction
of close to a half in the number of complamnts to the CCW over the last two years We have also
substantially reduced the number of escalated complaints assessed by the CCW 1 2011/12, with zero
assessments 1n several months of the year This has helped United Utihties improve 1ts quantitative SIM
performance by 49 per cent in 2011/12, compared with 2010/11 This follows a simlar sigmificant
improvement of more than 40 per cent in 2010/1 1, versus the indicative score for 2009/10 United Utilities
has also moved up five places into the third quartile on qualitative SIM for 2011/12, representing the joint
best improvement of the 21 water companies in the year Encouragingly, we dehvered continued
improvement 1n the second half of the year on both SIM measures providing a strong platform from which
to build 1n the forthcoming year Improving customer service remains a significant area of continued
management focus and we see plenty of opportunity to deliver further improvements
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE (continued)

Safe, clean drinking water — We have an action plan to maintain safe, clean drinking water through
improving the robustness of our water treatment processes, refurbishing service reservoir assets, ongoing
mains cleaming and optimising water treatment to reduce discoloured water events Umited Utthties
continues to supply a hmigh quality of drinking water, with a mean zonal compliance water quality
performance of 99 95 per cent

Water supply and demand balance — To help ensure a continuous water supply to our customers, our
action plan includes mnovation and investment m remole monitoring to better manage and control the
group’s water supply system We also have mvestment projects to optimise water pressures and improve
network resilience In addition, we are improving our response to burst mamns 1o help keep the water
flowing, supported by “wet’ repairs to water mains where the supply remains on through the repair process
United Utiltties completed the West East Link 1 2011/12, a significant capital project designed to improve
further the water supply and demand balance 1n 1ts region and enhance network resilience to chmate
change [n addition, our reservorr levels are robust and in hine with typical levels for this time of vear

Wastewater — United Utilities has a range of actions to help support the serviceability of its wastewater
assets To help reduce sewer flooding, these actions include mcident based targeting to focus on areas
more likely to experience flooding, effective intervention in cleaning and rehabilitation or refurbishment of
sewers and advising customers about items not suitable for sewer disposal The plan also includes an
mproved approach to nisk assessment to identify and reduce the nisk profile of the group’s wastewater
treatment works

Key performance indicators:

Serviceabibty — Long-term stewardship of assets 15 crnitical and Ofwat measures this through its
serviceabihty assessment (Ofwat defines serviceability as the capabihity of a system of assets to deliver a
reference level of service to customers and to the environment now and i the future) Ofwat currently
assesses one asset class (wastewater non-infrastructure} as ‘umproving’ and two asset classes (water
infrastructure and water non-mfrastructure} continue to be rated ‘stable’ Umted Utilities 15 currently
assessed by the regulator as ‘marginal’ in respect of wastewater infrastructure and the company 1s
tmplementing an action plan to return this asset class back to a ‘stable’ rating The aim 15 to hold at least a
‘stable’ rating for all four asset classes, which 1s abgned with Ofwat’s target

Service mcentive mechamism (SIM) — United Utilities improved its quantitative score for 2011/12 by 49
per cent, compared with 2010/11, to 273 points This follows an mmprovement of over 40 per cent n the
previous year On the qualitative measure, United Utilities has tmproved its 2011/12 score by 0 39 points
to 4 18 ponts and has moved up five places mto 16th position {out of 21 water companies) This
represents sixth position when compared with the 10 water and sewerage companies This early progress 1s
encouraging and the aim 1s to move to the first quartile in the medum-term

Lowest sustainable cost
Actions:

Asset optimisation — Qur asset optimisation programme continuies to progress well, provading the benefits
of increased and more effective use of operational site management to optimise power and chemical use
and the development of more combined heat and power (CHP) assets to improve energy efficiency The
implementation phase 1s well underway at over half of the 30 sites covered by the programme and a large
number of schemes came on line 1n 2011, with further projects being scoped The optinusatton programme
15 targeting approximately £9 milhion of annual savings by 2013/14
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Proactive asset management — We are continuing to intreduce a more proactive approach to asset and
network management, with the aim of improving our modelling and forecasting to enable us to address
more asset and network problems before they affect customers, thereby reducing the level of reactive work
and improving efticiency and customer service

Power costs — Umited Utilittes has substantially locked in the cost of its power requirements through to
2014/15, via hedging, securing outperformance Power umit costs for 2011/12 were similar to the prior
year and approximately 20 per cent lower compared with 2009/10  Although power umit costs beyond
2011/12 have been secured at higher levels than those for 2011/12, this still dehvers additional
outperformance versus the regulatory contract

Debt collection — We are adopting a more proactive approach to debt collection and have delivered
another good performance in the year We are mmplementing a detailed action plan, which mncludes
enhancing systems to improve customer segmentation analysis and to obtain better data on customers who
have changed address, coupled with a more proactive debt follow up strategy To support this, a
proportion of our debt collection function which was previously off-shored has been brought back in-house
and this has helped improve our debt collection performance Bad debts as a proportion of regulated
revenue 1mproved from 2 5 per cent 1n 2009/10 to 2 1 per cent in 2010/11 The North West faces a
particularly tough economic environment with unemployment having increased at a faster rate than any
other UK rtegion 1n 2011/12, particufarly 1n the second half of the year Despite this, we have agamn
dehivered a good performance with bad debts standing at 2 2 per cent of regulated revenue for 2011/12
Debt collection will remain a significant area of focus for the business

Lean principles — Supporting the group’s efficlency drive 1s its lean principles approach to doing business
Systems and processes continue te be streamlined and the business 1s rationalising its infrastructure and has
in-sourced uts I'T provision to provide greater control of its IT assets and applications

Pensions — The group placed its pension proviston on a more sustainable footing in 2010 and has
subsequently taken additional steps to de-nsk the pension schemes further  An mflation funding
mechanism has been introduced, which has facilitated a move to a lower nisk investment strategy with the
propertion of pension assets invested 1n equities or other high risk assets now reduced to around 25 per
cent More prudent longevity assumptions have also been recently introduced Further details on the
group’s pension provision are provided in the pensions section on page 26

Capital dehivery — The business 1s strongly focused on deltvering its commitments efficiently and on time
We utilised previous experience to improve the terms and conditions of our supplier contracts and have a
robust commercial capital delivery framework n place for the 2010-15 period Contractor performance 1s
ahigned with the group’s busmess plan through appropriate incentive arrangements In addition, the
business has introduced a more disciphined approach to spend and outputs through a Time Cost Quality
index (TCQ1) This enhances the capital investment governance process and provides a sharper focus on
the delivery of commitments, with a direct hnk to the executive remuneration scheme The TCn
performance score has improved from around 50 per cent last year to over 80 per cent for 2011/12 and the
company’s long-term goal 15 to achieve over 90 per cent Regulatory capital mvestment in 2011/12,
including £154 million of infrastructure renewals expenditure, was £680 million, an increase of 12 per cent
compared with last year United Utihities has now delivered approximately £1 3 billion of capital
investment m the first two years of the 2010-15 period This spend 1s broadly in line with the regulatory
allowance, after adjusting for the construction output price index (COPI) which 15 consistent with Ofwat’s
methodology Good progress in the delivery of outputs has also been achieved 1n the early part of the new
regulatory perod, reflecting a smoother and more efficient invesiment profile than that experienced n the
2005-10 period We expect regulatory capital expenditure to be around £700 mullion wn the 2012/13
financial year, consistent with our five-year programme
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Sludge processing — A new £100 mullion sludge processing centre 1s bemng developed at the group’s
Davyhulme wastewater treatment works in Manchester Sludge will armive from seven feeder treatment
works and will be processed using advanced thermal hydrolysis technology The new facility will provide
a range of benefits including energy self-sufficiency for the whole site, greater sludge disposal flexibility,
with a wider choice of land disposal due to the advanced stage of the treated product, and improved sludge
conditton to enhance the efficiency of incineration  There will also be the option to pump the treated
siudge to United Utilities” Shell Green sludge processing centre in Widnes

Private sewers — The ownership of, and responsibility for, private sewers was transferred to the
wastewater companies m England and Wales from | October 2011 We have been preparmg for this for
some time resulting 1n a smeoth transitton  The number of customer contacts, the increase in work
volumes and the level of expenditure, thus far, has been a little below mmitial expectations  In addition, the
mux of work has been shghtly different to that imtially anticipated, with a greater proportion of expenditure
relating to enhancement capex, as we undertake investigations and remed:al work on these newly acquired
assets As we have evolved our operating model, we have seen an increasmg proportion of work relating to
enhancement expenchiture as we have progressed through the period since 1 October We are attaining
better asset information and, in addition to jetting and cleanmg activity, we are undertaking remedial work
to improve and, where appropriate, enhance the quality of the infrastructure, to bring 1t more 1n hine with
United Utilities’ asset standards and to reduce the risk of future problems for our customers This is all
consistent with our drive to deliver good customer service, where we aim to complete the job efficiently
and effectively and in a single visit where practicable We have also experienced lower levels of operating
expenditure and mfrastructure renewals expenditure (IRE} than anticipated In the second half of 2011/12,
operating expenditure was £6 mullion and capital expenditure was £15 million, of which £9 million was
IRE This has alse resulted in a positive impact on operating profit in the second half of 200 1/12 In light
of this, we have outlined a revision to the level and mix of our cost estimates for the period October 2011
to March 2015 This reduces our total estimate for operating expenditure by £15 million to around £40
million, with a £5 mullion reduction 1n total capital expenditure to around £120 million Importantly, the
mix 1s now expected to be more evenly sphit between IRE and enhancement capital expenditure, reflecting
experience over the last few months, with a revised estimate of £60 million for each of these expenditures
categories This fower rate of spend 1s positive for customers as it should be beneficial to bills at the next
price review and, alongside this, we are raisimg asset standards It 1s also beneficial for the UUG group’s
investors, as costs are lower, a greater proportion of spend should be recoverable and we have the
opportunity for additional growth n the regulatory capital value We are still early into the transfer and
will continue to review these cost estimates based on the levels and type of workload and activity
expertenced and will provide updated forecasts as appropriate

Key performance indicators

Financing outperformance — United Utilities has secured over £300 million of financing outperformance
across the 2010-15 period, when compared with Ofwat’s allowed cost of debt of 3 6 per cent real, based on
an average RPI mflation rate of 2 5 per cent per annum  Should average RPI inflation outturn at 3 5 per
cent per annum across the five-year period, this would increase financing outperformance to around £400
milhon, net of the impact of the pensions inflation funding mechamism  United Utllities agreed a £200
mullion index hinked loan with the European Investment Bank (EIB), drawn down between March and May
2011, at an average real nterest rate of 1 2 per cent, which secures financing outperformance of around
£20 mullien through to 2015 Subsequently, a further £200 million index-linked loan facility was agreed
with the EIB and was drawn down 1n a number of tranches between November 2011 and March 2012 at an
average nterest rate of 0 9 per cent real This 1s the best rate Umited Unlities has secured and generates
further outperformance of over £15 million through to 2015
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Operating expenditure outperformance — The business 1s targeting total operating expenditure
outperformance over the 2010-15 period of at least £50 million, or approximately two per cent, compared
with the regulatory allowance This 15 1n addition to the base operating expenditure efficiency targets set
by Ofwat, which equate to a total of approxumately £150 milhon over the five years United Utilities 1s on
track to meet its five-year target and has now delivered cumulative operating expenditure outperformance
of over £20 miallion in the first two years of the regulatory period

Capital expenditure outperformance — United Utiities 1s delivering significant efficiencies n the area of
capital expenditure and expects to meet Ofwat’s allowance after adjusting, through the regulatory
methedology, for the impact of lower construction output prices Capntal expenditure and the delivery of
outputs remain on track

Responsible manner

Actions
Environment

Leakage management — The performance of the busmess in meeting its regulatory leakage target for
2010/11 was excellent, given the extreme winter weather, and Umited Utihities was one of only four water
and sewerage companies to meet its regulatory leakage 1arget in that year This reflected strong year-round
operational focus on leakage, an approach which we continued through 2011/12 and Unmited Utiliies has
now met its leakage target for the sixth consecutive year To help customers protect their homes in winter
and prevent leakage from their own pipes, we undertook a customer awareness campaign and distributed
over 100,000 advice packs

Environmental performance — This 1s a high prionty for the group and United Utilities has more than
halved the number of major pollution ncidents over the last few years Wastewater treatment works
comphance remains high at over 98 per cent, a shght improvement compared with the previous year
Umnited Utilities 1s working more closely with the Environment Agency (EA), through its agreed protocol,
to help mininuse the occurrence and environmental impact of pollution incidents  This includes the
sharing of resources, knowledge and expertise The group 1s also enhancing its telemetry and flow
monttoring equipment to provide early wdentification of incidents to enable prompt action to be taken to
mmmise the potential impact Recognising thal environmental performance 1s wide-ranging, the group 1s
measuring itself agamnst an EA composite measure as detailed 1n the key performance indicators below

Sustainable catchment management programme — United Utilities owns over 56,000 hectares of land in
the North West which it holds to protect the quality of water entering its reservowrs The group has
developed a sustamnable catchment management programme which will help te protect and improve water
quality and enhance biodiversity

Renewable energy — United Utilities has a detatled carbon and renewable energy plan, which both
contributes to sustainabihity and reduces costs We are on track to meet our target of a 21 per cent
reduction in carbon emissions by 2015 (measured from a 2005/06 baseline) Emussions in 2011/12 were
522,003 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, a reduction of nine per cent on last year We are now 13 per
cent below our baseline position United Utilities has consistently generated over 100 GWh of renewable
electricity annually for the past three years, principally from sludge processing, with renewable energy
equating to approximately 14 per cent of the group's total electrnicsty consumption  United Utihities also
reduced 1ts energy purchases by over 20 GWh 1n 2011/12  The group has plans in place to increase
renewable energy generation to 125 GWh per annum by 2015
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Employees

We continue to be successful 1n attracting and retasning people and 1n achieving UK high performing levels
of employee engagement We have, over a period of 12 months, delivered much more traming of a higher
standard and at the same time reduced the associated cost This year we delivered 24,000 days of traimng
to employees, of which more than 6,700 days were health and safety related In addition, over 300
employees have been supported through a wide range of further education courses We currentfy have 80
apprentices and plan to recruit up to a further 40 apprentices each year through to 2015 We have also re-
energised our graduate recruitment programme and 1n 2012 expect to recruit up to 20 graduates The past
year has seen us strengthen our focus on improving health and safety, with a programme led by the group’s
executive team This has helped reduce our accident frequency rate for employees from 0 386 accidents
per 100,000 hours worked 1n 2010/11, to 0215 accidents per 100,000 hours worked in 2011/12 More
detail 1s provided n the UUG group’s annual CR report Health and safety performance will continue to be
a significant area of focus for the group, as we strive to improve our performance further

Communities

We actively support our local communities and we have a number of community partnerships to help us
engage with the people m our region This year we have increased the number of partnerships that address
social 1ssues 1 our region, such as education, water efficiency and employabihty skills We understand the
impact we can have on the communities where we operate and undertake capital projects so we seek to
work with those commumities to leave a positive legacy after our projects have been delivered We have
continued our award winning ‘United Futures’ programme with our partner, Groundwork, to help
regenerate neighbourhoods after we have fimished our work there In addition, we have expanded our
innovative ‘Community Fund’ where local community groups are mvited to apply for small scale grants to
support their work During the year, we have contributed approximately £2 million supporting our local
communities, providing debt adwvisory services and over 19,000 hours volunteered by our employees

Key performance mmdicators:

Leakage — United Utilities met 1ts economic level of leakage rolling target for the sixth consecutive year in
2011/12, with a performance of 453 megalitres per day versus the regulatory target of 464 megalitres per
day The aim 1s to meet our regulatory leakage target each year

Environmental performance — The EA computes a composite measure which mcorporates a broad range
of areas including pollution United Utihities improved to a mid-ranking position for 2009/10 improving
from 1ts position in 2008/09, when 1t was ranked tenth out of ten water and sewerage companies The
group has reduced further the number of major pollution incidents and this has contributed to an improved
performance score for 2010/11 (the latest assessment available) and United Utihities retains a mid-ranking
position  United Utilities aims to move from this average relative posihion to the first quartile in the
medium-term

Corporate responsibility — The group has a strong focus on corporate responsibility and UUG 1s the only
UK water company to have a ‘World Class’ rating as measured by the Dow Jones Sustainability Index
The group aims to retain this ‘World Class’ rating each year
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue

Umited Utilities has delivered a good set of financial results for the year ended 31 March 2012 Revenue
mncreased by £52 mullion to £1,565 mitlion, principally reflecting a 4 5 per cent nominal (0 2 per cent real
price decrease plus 4 7 per cent RPI inflation) regulated price increase, partially offset by the ongoing
impact of customers switching to meters and lower commercial valumes The impact of meter switching
was tn line with our expectations, although commerctal volumes were lower than expected, particularly n
the second half of the year when the North West experienced an increase in unemployment We would
expect to recover the majority of this revenue shortfall through the regulatory methodology at the next
price review

Operating profit

Underlying operating profit decreased shghtly by £2 million to £594 million, primarily as a result of
increases n mfrastructure renewals expenditure, depreciation and property rates, the impact of the transfer
of private sewers and the new carbon reduction commitment charge, largely offset by the increase m
revenue Reported operating profit rose by two per cent to £592 million, as last year was impacted by one-
off restructuring costs of £16 million which reduced operating profit in the prior period

Investment income and finance expense

Investment income and finance expense of £276 million was £53 million higher than last year, principally
reflecting £43 million of net fair value losses on debt and derrvative instruments, compared with £19
million of net fair value gains in 2010/11 The £43 mullion net fair value loss n the period 1s largely due to
losses on the regulatory swap portfolio resulting from a significant decrease 1n sterling interest rates during
the period The group uses these swaps to effectively fix interest rates on a substantial proportion of its
debt to better match the financing cash flows allowed by the regulator at each price review The group has
continued to benefit from fixing the majority of 1its remamning debt for the 2010-15 financial penod,
providing a net effective nommal mterest rate of approximately five per cent Partially offsetting these
losses, there has been a net fair value gain during the period due to widening credit spreads in the market,
affecting the fair value of our fair value option debt

The indexation of the principal on index-linked debt amounted to a net charge in the mcome statement of
£100 milhon, compared with a net charge of £103 mullion last year This reflected lower RPI inflation in
respect of the group’s index-linked debt with a three month lag  This reduction was primarily offset by
additional finance expense relating to the £400 mullion index-linked loan facihities provided by the
European Investment Bank {EIB), which were drawn down 1n various tranches between March 2011 and
March 2012 The first £200 million of facilities were drawn down at an average real mterest rate of | 2 per
cent, with the second £200 millicn at 0 9 per cent, the lowest rate the group has achieved to date The
indexation charge does not represent a cash flow and 1s more than matched by an inflationary uphft to the
regulatory capital value The group had approximately £2 7 bilhon of index-linked debt as at 31 March
2012

Profit before taxation

Underlying profit before taxation was £362 mullion, £3 million higher than last year This underlying
measure adjusts for the impact of one-off items, principally from restructuring and reorganisation within
the business, and fair value movements m respect of debt and derivative instruments  Reported profit
before taxation decreased by 12 per cent to £315 nullion, pnimarily as a result of net fair value losses on
debt and derivative instruments
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (continued)

Taxation

The current taxation charge was £61 million 1n the year and the current taxation effective rate was 19 per
cent, compared with 12 per cent in the previous year The current year charge includes a £10 million credit
following agreement with the UK tax authorities of prior years’ taxation matters, without which the
effective rate would have been 22 per cent

The group has recogmised a net deferred taxation credit of £77 million for the year This includes a £105
mithion credit, of which £50 miliion had already been recognised wn first half of 2011/12, relating to the
changes substantively enacted by the UK Government to reduce the mamstream rate of corporation
taxation from 26 per cent to 24 per cent from | Apnil 2012 A net deferred taxation credit of £99 million
was also recogmsed n 2010/11, to reflect a simtlar two per cent staged reduction n the rate of corporation
taxation

An overall taxation credit of £16 million has been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2012
Excluding the impact of the reduction in the corporation taxation rate and the impact of the prior year
taxation adjustments, the total taxation charge would be £83 million or 26 per cent compared with an £98
milhon charge or 27 per cent last year

The taxation benefit of £33 mullion relating to pension contnbutions for deficit funding has been recorded
in the statement of comprehensive income, rather than the income statement, as the actuarial movements
giving rise to the deficit were previously recorded there Associated deferred taxation movements of £29
miilion are also included n the statement of comprehensive income The group made a net cash taxation
payment during the year of £5 mullion, primarily reflecting the £35 million cash taxation inflow relating to
prior years’ taxatton matters, which largely offset the cash taxation paid n the year In the previous year,
the group’s net taxation payment was £47 million

Profit after taxation

Underlying profit after taxation was £267 million This 15 based on the underlymg profit before taxation
figure less an underlymg taxation charge of £95 million, which includes an adjustment for the deferred
taxation credit in relation to the change in the mainstream rate of corporation taxation and the credit
relating to prior years’ taxation matters Reported profit afier taxation, from continuing operations, was
£331 milhion compared with £375 mullion last year

Cash flow

Net cash generated from continuing operating activities for the year ended 31 March 2012 was £493
mullion, compared with £768 muhon last year This decrease 1s mamly due to a £232 milhon increase n
the amount owed by UUG, mcluded within the £241 million increase n trade and other receivables The
group’s net capital expenditure was £502 mullion, principally i the regulated water and wastewater
mvestment programmes This excludes infrastructure renewals expenditure which 1s treated as an
operating cost under International Financial Reporting Standards

Net debt including derivatives at 31 March 2012 was £5,109 million, compared with £4,809 million at 31
March 2011 This expected increase reflects expenditure on the regulatory capital investment programmes
and payments of interest, alongside the accelerated pension deficit repair payment, partly offset by
operating cash flows
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (continued)

Debt financing and mterest rate management

Gearing (measured as group net debt divided by United Utihties Water PLC’s regulatory capital value
adjusted for actual capital expenditure) remained flat at 59 per cent at 31 March 2012, compared with the
position at 31 March 2011, and remamns comfortably within Ofwat’s 55 per cent to 65 per cent assumed
gearing range  This 1s the net effect of three main factors indexation of the principal of the group’s index-
linked debt, the acceterated pension deficit repair payment and growth n the regulatory capital value The
group’s penstons deficit has reduced to £92 mullion, on an accounting basis, compared with a deficit of
£195 million at 31 March 2011 Taking account of this small deficit, and treating it as debt, gearmng
increases shightly to 60 per cent

At the year end, Umted Utihities Water PLC had long-term credit ratings of A3/BBB+ and United Utihties
PLC had long-term credit ratings of Baal/BBB- from Moody’s Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s
Ratings Services respectively The split rating reflects differing methodologies used by the credit rating
agencies

Cash and short-term deposits at 31 March 2012 amounted to £321 million Between March and May 2011,
Umited Utihittes Water PLC drew down a £200 mullion index-linked lean facility with the EIB  The group
also renewed £150 mithion of bank facilities during 2011/12  In addiion, 1n November 2011, United
Utilities Water PLC agreed a further £200 million index-linked loan facility with the EIB which was drawn
down between then and March 2012 United Utilities has headroom to cover 1ts projected financing needs
mto 2014

The group has access to the international debt capital markets through its €7 bilhion euro medium-term note
programme which provides for the pertodic 1ssuance by United Utihities PLC and Umited Unilites Water
PLC of debt instruments on terms and conditions determined at the tume the instruments are 1ssued The
programme does not represent a funding commitment, with funding dependent on the successful issue of
the debt securities

Long-term borrowings are structured or hedged to match assets and earnings, which are largely n sterling,
indexed to UK retail price mflation and subject to regulatory price reviews every five years

Very long-term sterling inflation index-linked debt 1s the group’s preferred form of funding as this provides
a natural hedge to assets and earnings At 31 March 2012, approximately 32 per cent of the group’s net
debt was 1n index-linked form, representing around 31 per cent of United Utilities Water PLC’s regulatory
capital value, with an average real interest rate of 1 7 per cent The leng-term nature of this funding also
provides a good match to the group’s long-life infrastructure assets and 1s a key coninbutor to the group’s
average term debt maturity profile which 1s approximateiy 25 years

Where norminal debt 1s raised 1n a currency other than sterling and/or with a fixed interest rate, to manage
exposure to long-term interest rates, the debt 1s generally swapped to create a floating rate sterling liability
for the term of the liability To manage exposure to mediumn term interest rates, the group fixed interest
costs for a substantral proportion of the group’s debt for the duration of the 2010-15 regulatory period at
around the time of the price review

Following the 2009 price review, the group re-assessed its nterest rate hedging policy with a view to
further reducing regulatory risk  To help address the uncertainty as to how Ofwat may approach the setting
of the cost of debt allowance at the next price review in 2014, United Utilittes has revised 1ts interest rate
management strategy to extend uts fixed interest rate hedge out 1o a 10-year maturity on a reducing balance
basis The intention 1s to extend the interest rate hedge each year to eventually achieve a 10-year rolling
average interest rate on the group’s nominal debt Umted Utilities believes that this revised imterest rate
hedging policy, which provides for a longer fixing of interest rates, will put the group 1n a more flexible
position to respond to whatever approach Ofwat adopts to the industry cost of debt in future
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (continued)

Ligquadaty

Short-term liquidity requirements are met from the group’s nermal operating cash flow and 1ts short-term
bank deposits The group has a €2 bithon euro-commercial paper programme and further liquidity 15
provided by commutted but undrawn credit facilities

In line with the UUG board’s treasury policy, United Utilities aims to maintan a robust headroom position
Available headroom at 31 March 2012 was £581 million based on cash, short-term deposits and medium-
term committed bank facilities, net of short-term debt This headroom 1s sufficient to cover the group’s
projected financing needs nto 2014

United Unlities believes that 1t operates a prudent approach to managing banking counterparty risk
Counterparty nisk, i relation to both cash deposits and derivatives, 1s controlled through the use of
counterparty credit imits Umted Utilities’ cash 1s held 1n the form of short-term (generally no longer than
three months) money market deposits with prime commercial banks

United Utilities operates a bilateral, rather than a syndicated, approach to its core relationship banking
facthitres  This approach spreads maturities more evenly over a longer time period, thereby reducing
refinancing nisk and providing the benefit of several renewal points rather than a large single refinancing
requirement

Pensions

As at 31 March 2012, the group had a net retirement benefit, or pension, deficit of £92 million, compared
with a net pension deficit of £195 mullion at 31 March 2011  This £103 nullion positive movement
principally reflects payment of the £100 million accelerated deficit repair contribution

The group has sought to adopt a more sustamnable approach to the delivery of pension provision and n
advance of the start of the 201015 regulatory period amended the terms of its defined benefit pension
schemes, the details of which were included in the 2010 annual report and financial statements United
Utihities also reduced 1ts future pension obligations as a result of the sale of non-regulated activities

The group stated previously that 1t would coniinue to evaluate its pensions investment strategy to de-risk
further 1ts pension provision and introduced an inflation funding mechamism (the details of which were
included 1n the 2811 report and financial statements), which facilitates a move to a lower risk nvestment
strategy This has allowed United Utilities to reduce the allocation of its pensien assets to 25 per cent In
equities and other lgh nisk assets, from 34 per cent at 31 March 2011 In addition, Umted Unlities has
adopted the use of more prudent longevity assumptions The group has also increased its interest rate
hedge to around 65 per cent of pension scheme liabiliies  Although any additional payments under this
mechamsm would reduce financing outperformance, there would be a positive benefit to the pensions
surplus or deficit position

From an accounting perspective, 1AS 19 treats the inflation funding mechanism as a schedule of
contributions rather than a pension scheme asset This means that the habilities position can change to
reflect a change in market expectations of long-term inflation, without a commensurate movement in
assets The change in inflation has decreased the present value of the habihties during the year to 31
March 2012 This accounting treatment means that there 1s likely to be a degree of volatility 1n future IAS
19 pension valuations

Further detail 1s provided in note 19 (‘Retirement benefit obligations’) of these consohdated financial
statements
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Underlying profit

In considering the underlymg results for the period, the directors have excluded fair value movements on
debt and derivative mstruments and one-off items Reported operating profit and profit before taxation
from continuing operattons are reconciled to underlying operating profit, underlymg profit before taxation
and underlying profit afier taxation (non-GA AP measures) as follows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
Operating profit £m £m
Operating profit per pubtished resulis 5915 5802
One-off ttems ! 26 162
Underlying operating profit 594 1 596 4
Nel finance expense £m £m
Finance expense (315 5) (255 9)
Investment income 393 323
Net finance expense (276 2) (223 6)
Net fair value losses/(gaims) on debt and derrvative instruments 432 (19 2)
Adjustment for interest on swaps and debt under fair value options 72 57
Adjustment for net pension interest expense 33 38
Adjustment for capitahisation of interest costs )] 44)
Underlying net finance expense (232 2) (237 7)
£m £m

Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation per pubhshed results 3153 35606
One-off items " 26 16 2
Net fair value losses/(gains) on debt and derivative instruments 432 (19 2)
Adjustment for interest on swaps and debt under fair value option 72 57
Adjustment for net pension inferest expense 33 38
Adjustment for capitahisation of interest costs o7 44)
Underiying profit before taxation 3619 3587
Profit after taxation £m £fm
Underlying profit before taxation 3619 358 7
Reported taxation 156 187
Deferred taxation credit — change in taxation rate (104 6) (99 0)
Agreement of prior years’ UK taxation matters 59 (174
Taxation relating to underlying profit before taxation adjustments (zn (0 6)
Underlying profit after taxation 266 7 2604

(1) Principally relates to restructuring and other reorgamisation costs within the business
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Underlying operating profit reconciliation

2011/12 15 the first year in which the group has presented the consolidated financial statements as a single
segment and therefore the table below provides a reconciliation between group underlying operating profit
and United Utiities Water PLC historical cost regulatory undertying operating profit (non-GAAP
measures) as follows

Year ended
31 March 2012
Continuing operations £m
Underlying operating profit
Group underlying operating profit 5941
Underlying opetating profit not relating to United Utilities Water {109)
Infrastructure renewals accounting 402
Other differences 39
Umited Utilities Water statutory underlying operating profit 6195
Revenue recogmtion 26
Infrastructure renewals accounting 25
Non-apponted business (70)
United Utithties Water regulatory underlying operating profit 6126

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

We manage risk through our corperate risk management framework As part of this, we maintain a process
that regularly assesses the nature and magnitude of mternal and external risks Mitigation measures are
used n a prioritised manner to reduce exposure and ensure restience The UUG executive reviews
significant risks so that the board can determine the nature and extent of those risks 1t is willing to take 1n
achieving our strategic objectives The UUG audit and risk commitiee regularly reviews the framework’s
effectiveness and the UUG group’s compliance with 1t

Key developments during the year

The legislative reform proposed by the government’s recently published Water White Paper (Water for
Life) 1s now one stage nearer The hkely impact on the mdustry, positive or negative, will not be fully
understood until the draft Water Bill 1s published and ultimately becomes legislation

Ofwat has also started the process of preparing the ground for the 2014 price review process This includes
a consultation with stakeholders about ‘Future Price Limnts’ which asks for consideration of a number of
proposals for change that may be required to facihitate the aims of the Water White Paper
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Government market reform agenda

Risk
The government’s White Paper (Water for Life) highlights a number of areas which government will focus
on to reform the water industry These include

e protecting water and the natural environment,
* tackling water pollution,

o tackling over abstraction,

e water and the green economy,

o reforming and extending competition,

e supporting growth and innovation,

s affordability and bad debt, and

+ changmmg the way we use and value water

A draft Water Bill 1s expected to be published before Parhament’s summer recess, which commences on 18
July 2012, and should deliver many of the aspects set out tn the White Paper Changes to the ndustry are
expected to include extending competition to all non-household customers for both water and wastewater,
the removal of bammers to the trading of abstraction licences and facilitating bulk supplies of water, reform
of the special merger regime to allow more mergers of water compames and reform of the inset
appointment regime  There 15 also a propesal (in the govemment’s White Paper) to replace the ‘costs
principle’ which underpins network access

Ofwat plans to consult on the methodology for the 2014 price review m the autumn of 2012

Mitigation
The group has been fully engaged in all government and Ofwat consultations i relation to competition,
industry reform and the price setting process

In respect of competition, a relatively small proportion of the group’s profits derive from the retailing of
water and wastewater services to non-household customers If competition 1s expanded, there would be
opportunities for the group to participate in a wider market in England and potentially Scotland However,
we recogmise that reforms to the pricing rules that govern access to the group’s water network and greater
upstream competition could put at risk a greater proportion of the group’s profits

We have raised our concerns with Ofwat and will be proposing an alternative to the ‘costs principle’,
seeking to ensure that key underlymng principles (on both cost of entry and efficiency of provision) are
reflected 1n any replacement

Future price hmits — average cost to serve

Risk

It 1s expected that market reform will result in two price hmats, one for retail and one for wholesale Ofwat
proposes to set an average cost to serve for non-contestable customers n the retail price imit  This
proposal could result in us having a sigmficant cost recovery shortfall over the next five-year price control
pertod

Mithgation

We have raised and explained our concerns with Ofwat and made alternative proposals as part of the
consultation process and continue to make strong representation to Ofwat on this 1ssue, citing the market
evidence from nvestors and analysts to support our case
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Future price hmits — hcence modifications

Risk
Ofwat has made proposals to modify the licences of the water and wastewater industry to

» allow 1t to remove reference to the use of the retail price index (RPI) n price setting, and
s allow flexibility 1n the number of price Iimits set and the duration of price controls

Mitigation
All 21 water companies have rejected Ofwat’s proposals and the regulator 1s now consulting with the wider
walter sector before making 1ts deciston on this later in 2012

Capatal investment programmes

Risk
The core business requires significant capital expenditure, particularly in relation to new and replacement
plant and equipment for water and wastewater networks and treatment facilities

Dehivery of capital investment programmes could be affected by a number of factors including adverse
legacy effects of earlier capital investments (such as increased maintenance, repair, reinstatement or
renewal costs) or amounts budgeted in prior capital investment programmes proving msufficient to meet
the actual amount required This may affect the group’s ability to meet regulatory and other environmental
performance standards

Mitigation

Capital investment programmes are regularly monitored to dentify the nisk of time, cost and quality
vartances from plans and budgets and to identify, where possible, any appropriate opportumties for
outperf'ormance and any necessary corrective actions

The UUG executive directors are incentivised, as part of their bonusable measures, on time, cost and
quality of delivery of our capital investment programme

Service incentive mechamism

Risk

For the 2010-15 peniod, Ofwat has ntroduced a new comparative incentive mechanism to reward or
penahise water companies’ service performance, replacing the Overall Performance Assessment (OPA)
The Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) compares companies’ performance in terms of the number of
‘unwanted’ contacts received from customers and how well they deal with those contacts Depending on
UUW?s relative performance under SIM 1t could receive a revenue penalty (up to one per cent of turnover)
or reward (up to 0 5 per cent of turnover) when price limits are next reset in 2014

Mitigation

The group has been monitoring and measuring customer satisfaction for a number of years and results have
been improving consistently 'We have already improved our SIM score, as detailed 1n our KPIs To bwild
on this success, we have a dedicated project team to ensure our processes, behaviours and systems provide
consistent and excellent service to our customers The company’s focus 1s on ensuring right first time
service delivery to its customers, thus avoiding the need for ‘unwanted’ contacts and reducing associated
operating costs Where ‘unwanted’ contacts do arise, then there 1s a clear focus on identifying the root
causes to improve the overall customer experience and the SIM score  Capital costs of enhanced systems
to improve performance are dealt with through the Capital Incentive Scheme These actions are intended
t0 ensure that the company’s performance under SIM 1s optimised thereby mitigating the risk of a penalty
at the next price setting
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
Serviceability assessment

Risk

The group 1s required to mamiain the serviceabithty of its water and wastewater assets, ensuning i
continues 1o deliver a level of service and performance that 15 at least as good as in the past Where
serviceahlity falls below required reference levels of performance, Ofwat deploys a staged approach to
regulatory action to secure corrective actions and could make financial adjustments at the next price setting
if these actions did not restore service performance If performance was to contmue to dechine, the group
may incur additional operating or capital expenditure to restore performance

Mitigation

The various ndicators of performance are closely and routinely monitored by management The
company’s capital investment programme s targeted to seek to mantain stable serviceability of the
company’s water and wastewater assets Simularly, operational practice 15 intended to ensure stable
serviceability Where adverse trends develop and there 15 a rnisk of serviceability deviating from stable,
then corrective action can be wdentified and taken

Pension scheme obligations

Risk

The group participates 1n a number of pension arrangements The principal schemes are defined benefit
schemes, although these have been closed to new employees since October 2006 The assets of these
schemes are held i trust funds independent of group finances, with the funds being well diversified and
professionally managed The group’s current schemes had a combined IAS 19 deficit of £92 million as at
31 March 2012, compared with a deficit of £195 million as at 31 March 2011

Mitigation

Increases to pension fund deficits may result in an increased habihty for the group, the size of the habiity
depending on a number of factors, including levels of contributions and actuarial assumptions In the 2009
water price review, Ofwat took account of broadly 50 per cent of the pension deficit shown in UUW’s final
business plan over a 10-year period (subject to reaffirmation at the next price review) for the regulated
business and allowed for half of this deficit when setting its overall price controls for the 2010-15 period

In response to the size of 1ts ongoing pension risks and pension costs the group introduced a series of
changes for employees n its defined benefit (DB) schemes These changes, which came nto force on 31
March 2010, should result in reduced costs and risks, mcluding deficit, associated with DB habilities 1n
future In comjunction with the trustees, the group continues to monttor and to look to reduce the
investment strategy risks for the pension schemes, including the group’s exposure to investment risks
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Failure to comply with applicable law or regulation

Risk

The group 1s subject to vartous laws and regulations in the UK and mternationally Regulatory authorities
may, from tume to time, make enquiries of companies within therr jurisdiction regarding comphance with
regulations governing their operations In addition to regulatory compliance proceedings, the group could
become nvolved tn a range of third party proceedings relating to, for example land use, environmental
protection, health and safety and water quality Amongst others, these may include civil actions by third
parties for infringement of rights or musance claims relating to odour or other matters Furthermore, the
impact of future changes 1n laws or regulations or the introduction of new laws or regulations that affect
the buswness cannot always be predicted and, from time to time, interpretation of existing laws or
regulations may also change or the approach to therr enforcement may become more rigorous If the group
fails to comply with applicable law or regulations, n particular n relation to its water and wastewater
licences, or has not successfully undertaken corrective action, regulatory action could be taken that could
include the imposition of a financial penalty (of up to 10 per cent of relevant regulated turnover) or the
imposition of an enforcement order requiring the group to incur addittonal capital or operating expenditure
to remedy its non-compliance In the most extreme cases, non-complhance may lead to revocation of a
hicence or the appeintment of a special admmmstrator

Mitigation

The group endeavours to comply with all legal requirements 1n accordance with 1ts business principles and
robust processes are in place to seek to mitigate against non-compliance The group continually monitors
legislative and regulatory developments and, where appropriate, participates in consultations to seek to
influence their outcome, either directly or through industry trade associations for wider 1ssues  The group
seeks appropriate funding for any additional compliance costs 1 the regulated business as part of the price
determination process

Events, service interruptions, systems failures, water shortages or contamination of water supplies

Risk

The group controls and operates water and wastewater networks and maintains the associated assets with
the objective of providing a continuous service The group 15 also dependent on the ability to access,
utilise and communicate remotely via electronic software applications mounted on cerperate information
technology hardware and communicating through internal and external networks which are not wholly
under 1ts control

In exceptional circumstances, such as prolonged drought, system faillure or catastrophic damage, a
sighificant interruption of service provision could occur

Such consequences may arnise due to a number of circumstances either within or outside the company’s
control For example from water shortages, the fatlure of an asset or an element of a network or supporting
plant and equpment, human error, an mdividual’s malicious intervention or unavoidable resource
shortfalls

Such nstances have a low probability, but if materialised could result in significant loss of life,
environmental damage and/or economic and social disruption

The group could be fined for breaches of statutory obligations or be held hable to third parties or be
required to provide an alternative water supply of equivalent quality, which could increase costs
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Mitigation

The group operates long-standing, well tested and appropriately resourced incident response and escalation
procedures The processes continue to be refined, alongside related risk management and business
continuity procedures which complement the governance and nspection regimes for key frastructure
assets such as aqueducts, dams, reservoirs and treatment works Disaster Recovery processes also exist for
the recovery of applications, all recognising that possible events can have varying causes, impacts and
likelithoods

Sustamability of our water supply 15 also managed through regional aqueduct networks which will be
enhanced by the West East Link pipeline  While the group seeks to ensure that 1t has appropriate processes
and preventative controls in place, there can be no certainty that such measures will be effective 1n
preventing or, when necessary, managing large-scale incidents to the satisfaction of customers, regulators,
government and the wider stakeholder community The group also maintains insurance cover in relation to
losses and habitittes likely to be associated with such sigmificant risks, although potential habilities arising
from a catastrophic event could exceed the maximum level of insurance cover that can be obtained cost-
effectively The licence of the regulated business also contamns a ‘shipwreck” clause that, 1If applicable,
may offer a degree of recourse to Ofwat/customers (by way of interim determination) n the event of a
catastrophic incident

Matenial hixgation

Risk

In February 2009, United Utilities International Limited (UUIL) was served with notice of a multiparty
‘class action’ in Argentina related to the 1ssuance and payment default of a US$230 million bond by
Inversora Electrica de Buenos Arres S A (IEBA), an Argentine project company set up to purchase one of
the Argentine electricity distribution networks which was privatised i 1997 UUIL had a 45 per cent
shareholding in IEBA which 1t sold in 2005 The claim 1s for a non-quantified amount of unspecified
damages and purports to be pursued on behalf of unidentified consumer bondholders in IEBA UUIL has
filed a defence to the action and will vigorously resist the proceedings given the robust defences that UUIL
has been advised that it has on procedural and substantive grounds

In March 2010, Manchester Ship Canal Company (MSCC) 1ssued proceedings seeking, amongst other
rehief, damages alleging trespass against United Utiities Water PLC (UUW) in respect of UUW’s
discharges of water and treated effluent into the canal UUW filed a Defence and Counterclaim m support
of 1its believed entitlement 1o make discharges into the canal without charge and await MSCC’s response
Although UUW won a ‘summary judgment’ applicatton against MSCC 1n January on a significant element
of the claim, MSCC has served notice that 1t intends to appeal this decision

Mitigation

The group faces the general nisk of litigation in connection with its businesses In most cases, habtlity for
litigation 1s difficult to assess or quantify, recovery may be sought for very large and/or indeterminate
amounts and the existence and magnitude of liability may remam unknown for substantial periods of time
The group robustly defends hitigation, where appropriate, and seeks to minimise its exposure to such claims
by early 1dentification of risks and comphance with its tegal and other obligations Based on the facts and
matters currently known and the provisions carried in the group’s statement of financial position, the
directors are of the opimon that the possibility of the disputes referred to in this nisk section having a
material adverse effect on the group’s financial position 1s remote
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of United Utilities PLC and 1ts
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2012

Principal activities and business review

The company 1s a public limited company registered in England and Wales Its registered office address 1s
at Haweswater House, Lingley Mere Business Park, Lingley Green Avenue, Great Sankey, Warrington,
WAS3LP

The company 1s the mtermediate holding company of a group which owns and operates water and
wastewater assets in the North West of England

The business review (pages 3-33), which includes the chief executive officer’s statement and the financial
performance section (pages 23-28), provides a balanced analysis of the development and performance of
the group’s business during the financial year, and the position of the group’s business at the year end, and
forms part of this directors’ report A summary of key performance indicators can be found in the
performance section of the business review on page 6 A summary of the principal rnisks and uncertainties
can be found on pages 28 to 33 The company’s principal subsidiary undertakings, and the associated
companies and jomnt ventures in which the group participates, are histed in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements

Dividends
The directors have not recommended a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 mil)

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and to date are given below

PA Aspin

M Carmedy (resigned 31 October 2011)
JR Houlden

SL Mogford (apponted 4 Apri] 2011)

Dhirectors’ indemnities and insurance

UUG has 1n place contractual entitlements for directors of subsidiary and certain associated companies to
claim indemnification by UUG 1n respect of certain liabilities which might be incurred by them 1n the
course of their duties as directors These arrangements, which constitute quahfying third party indemnity
provision and quahfying pension scheme mdemnity provision, have been established in compliance with
the retevant provisions of the Companies Act 2006 They include provision for UUG to fund the costs
mcurred by directors in defending certain claims against them in relation to their duties as directors of
UUG or its subsidianies UUG alse maintains an appropriate level of directors’ and officers’ hiability
msurance for both UUG and all its subsidiary companies Directors and officers of the UUG group are
covered under this insurance pelicy where they have been asked by the group to carry out duties on behalf
of the group
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Political and charitable donations

United Utilittes does not support any pohtical party and does not make what are commonly regarded as
donations to any political party or other political orgamisations However, the wide definition of donations
n the Pohtical Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 2000 covers activities which form part of the
necessary relatlonship between the group and pelitical stakeholders This includes promoting United
Utihtres’ activities at any of the mawn pelitical parties’ annual conferences

The period 2011/12 saw an increase mn stakeholder engagement along a number of policy themes as the
mdusiry examined its future development The group ncurred expenditure of £12,328 (2011 £5,000) as
part of this process At the 2011 United Utihues Group PLC annual general meeting, an authority was
taken to cover such expenditure A sumilar resolution will be put to the shareholders at the 2012 United
Utihties Group PLC annual general meeting to authorise the company and 1its subsidiaries to make such
expenditure

Charitable donations by the group wn the year amounted to £5,345.093 (2011 £5,193,987) Of this,
£5,000,000 went to the Umted Utihities Trust Fund, an independent grant-making trust helping people
facing severe financial challenges, whilst the remainder was 1n support of local chartable causes and these
of interest to employees

Employees

The company’s policies on employee consultation and on equal opportunities for disabled employees can
be found n the ‘Our approach to doing business’ section on page 8 For further information on the average
number of employees during the year, go to page 59

Environmental, social and community matters
Details of the group’s approach to corporate responsibility, relating to the environment and social and
community 1ssues, can be found in the ‘Our approach to doing business’ section on page 8

Essential contractual relationships

Certain suppliets to the group contribute key goods or services, the loss of which could cause disruption to
the group’s services However, none are so vital that their loss would affect the viability of the group as a
whole not 1s the business of the group overly dependent on any one individual customer

Policy on payment of creditors

The group’s policy 1s 1 hne with the CBI Code of Prompt Payment {copies are available from the CBI,
Centre Poimnt, 103 New Oxford Street, London, WCIA 1DU) Payment terms are specific to the type of
contract and the relevant commercial arrangements, and are agreed with suppliers in advance The group
makes every effort to comply with the payment terms as agreed with its supphiers subject to there bemng no
dispute with the invoices received As at 31 March 2012, the average credit period taken for trade
purchases was 29 days for the group (2011 31 days) At 31 March 2012, no average credut period has
been calculated for the company due to the company no longer making external purchases (2011 43 days)

Approach to technology development

The UUG group 1s commutted to using innovative, cost-effective and practical solutions for providing high
quality services and we recognise the importance of ensuring that we focus properly our investment in the
development of technology and that we have the night skills to apply technology to achieve sustainable
competitive advantage and also that we continue to be alert to emerging technological opportumties

Financial instruments
The risk management objectives and policies of the group in relation to the use of financial instruments can
be found in note 18 to the financial statements
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Directors’ report (continued)

Property, pant and equipment

The group holds sigmificant land assets, however, the vast majority of these are water catchment assets
which are an integral and essential part of the operation of the group’s regulated busmess The nature of
these assets, which are primarily moorland areas and which could not be sold by the group, means that it 15
impractical to obtam meanmgful market values for the land Other land owned by the group, the majority
of which relates to operational sites, does not have a market value materially different from historic cost

Events occurring after the reporting period
Details of events after the reporting period are included in note 29 to the consohidated financial statements
on page 103

Informatien given to the auditor
Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

(1) so far as he or she 15 aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor 15
unaware, and

(2) he has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of
any relevant audit infermation and to establish that the company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given, and should be interpreted, in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of
the Companies Act 2006

Auditor
During the year Deloitte LLP resigned as auditor of the group and KPMG Audit Plc were appointed

In accordance with section 489 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution for the reappointment of KPMG
Audit Plc as auditor of the group 1s to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Approved by the board on 1 June 2012 and signed on 1ts behalf by

ooty

Russ Houlden
Director
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and Parent Company
Financial Statements n accordance with applicable laws and regulations

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare group and parent company financial statements for each
financial year Under that law they are required to prepare the group financial statements 1n accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU) and
applicable law

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or
loss for that period In preparing each of the group and parent company financial statements, the directors
are required to

e select suitable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,
e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
e state whether they have been prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the EU, and

e prepare the financtal statements on the going concern basts unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume
that the group and the parent company will continue 1n business

The directors are responstble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the parent company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that sts financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to
them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other wrregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the company's website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of United Utihitrtes PL.C

We have audited the financial statements of United Utiliies PLC for the year ended March 2012 set out on
pages 40 to 103 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and, as regards the
Parent Company Financial Statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006

This report 15 made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully 1n the Directors' Responsibihities Statement set out on page 37, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit, and express an opinion en, the financial statements 1n accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements s provided on the APB's website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/pnivate cfim

Opmion on financial statements

In our opinion

s the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent
Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

s the Group financial statements have been properly prepared n accordance with [FRSs as adopted
by the EU,

* the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the EU and as applied in accordance with the provisiens of the Compames Act
2006, and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)
to the members of United Utilities PLC

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you 1f, 1n our opinion

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

e the Parent Company Financial Statements are not n agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

s  certan disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

» we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

n Luke (Senior Statutory Auditor)

r and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc
Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

St James Square, Manchester M2 6DS
United Kingdom

1 June 2012
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March

Note
Continuing operations
Revenue 1,2
Employee benefits expense
excluding restructuring costs 3
restructuring costs 3
Total employee benefits expense 3

Other reorganisation costs

Other operating costs 4
Other income 4
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4
Infrastructure renewals expenditure

Total operating expenses

Operating profit 4
Investment income 5
Finance expense 6

Investment income and finance expense
Profit before taxation

Current taxation charge
Deferred taxation charge
Deferred taxation credit — change in taxation rate

Taxation 7
Profit after taxation from continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Profit after taxation from discontinued operations 8

Profit after taxation

Re-presented*

2012 2011
£m £m
1,564 9 1,513 3
(135 4) (142 8)
26) G 1)
{1380) (145 9)
- (13 1)

(388 0) (358 1)
48 49
{297 8) (290 5)
(154 4) (1304)
(973 4) (933 1)
5915 5802
393 323
(315 %) (255 9)
(276 2) (223 6)
3153 3566
(60 9) (433
(28 1) (370
104 6 990
156 187
3309 3753
51 1037
3360 4790

* The comparatives have been re-presented to include loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment of £2 7 million wathin other
operating costs rather than other income as previously presented, as this better reflects the nature of expenditure
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March

2012 2011

Note £m £m
Profit after taxation 3360 4790
Other comprehensive income
Actuaral losses on defined benefit pension schemes 19 (24 3) 447
Net fair value losses on cash flow hedges - (02)
Revaluation of investmenis i3 - 11
Reclassification from other reserves arising on disposal of financial
asset investment 8 - (6 6)
Reclassification from other reserves arising on disposal of subsidiaries 8 - 18
Reclassification from cumulative exchange reserve arising on disposal
of subsidiaries 8 - 26 1)
Taxation on items taken directly to equity 7 44 17
Foreign exchange adjustments (19) 07
Total comprehensive iIncome 3142 4167
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Consolidated and company statements of financial position

at 31 March
Grou Compan
2012 ZOIFI) 2012 gOﬁf

Note £m £m £m fm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 8,644 5 8,274 9 04 04
Goodwill il 50 50 - -
Other intangible assets 12 895 939 - -
Investments 13 33 23 6,100 0 6,176 5
Trade and other recervables 15 11 - - -
Deferred tax asset 20 - - 177 295
Dertvative financial instruments 18 567 5 3633 1387 99 1

93109 8,739 4 6,256 8 6,305 5

Current assets

Inventories 14 47 4 47 6 - -
Trade and other recervables 15 2,036 6 1,798 7 1,239 4 1,682 6
Cash and short-term deposits 16 3212 2552 3082 2370
Derwvative financial instruments 18 499 20 01 -
2,4551 2,103 5 1,547 7 19196
Total assets 11,766 0 10,842 9 7,804 5 82251
LIABILITIES
Non-current habilities
Trade and other payables 22 (378 0) (249 8) - -
Borrowings 17 (5,728 1) {5,203 6) (6897 (660 8)
Retirement benefit obligations 19 (92 0) (195 0) Grn 52 1)
Deferred tax habilities 20 (1,245 2) (1,293 1) - -
Provisions 21 40 {9 3) - -
Derivative financial instruments 18 (159 7) (84 6) - (12 8)

(7,6070) (7,035 4) (740 8) (7257)

Current habhties

Trade and other payables 22 (445 9) 433 0) (1,317 0) (1,800 0)
Borrowengs 17 (159 8) (140 8) (8207) (861 3)
Current income tax liabilities (101 2) (873) - -
Provisions 21 (6 3) (14 5) 0 4) 22)
Dertvative financial instruments 18 on (04) o1n (0 4)
{713 3) (676 ) (2,138 2) (2,663 9)
Total habilities (8,320 3) (7,711 4) (2,879 0) (3,389 6)
Total net assets 34457 3,1315 49255 48355
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the company
Share caputal 23,24 8818 8818 88138 8818
Share premium account 23 1,430 0 1,430 0 1,430 0 1,4300
Revaluation reserve 23 158 8 158 & - -
Cumulative exchange reserve 23 (50) 30N - -
Retained earmings 23 980 1 664 0 26137 25237
Shareholders’ equity 34457 3,1315 49255 4,8355

These financial statements for the group and United Utiliies PLC {(company number 2366616) were
approved by the board of directors on 1 June 2012 and signed on its behalf by

Russ Houlden
Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March

Share Cumulative
Share premwm Revaluation  exchange Retaned
capital account reserve reserve  earnings Total
£fm £m £m £m £m £m
Group
At 1 Apnil 2011 8818 14300 158 8 3G 6640 3,1315
Profit after taxation - - - - 3360 3360

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial losses on defined benefit

pension schemes - - - - (24 3) (24 3)
Taxation on items taken directly to

equity (note 7) - - - - 44 44
Foreign exchange adjustments - - - {19 - (19
Total comprehensive
(expense)income - - - (19 316 1 3142
At 31 March 2012 8818 14300 158 8 {50) 9801 3,4457
Share Cumulative
Share premium Revaluauon exchange Other  Retaned
capital account reserve TESCTVE  [ESErves  earmings Total
£m £m £m fm £fm £m £m

Group
At 1 Aprif 2010 8818 1,430 0 158 8 223 38 4519 2948 6
Profit after taxation - - - - - 479 0 4790
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial losscs on defined benefit pension
schemes - - - - - 447y (44 7y
Net fair value losses on cash flow hedges - - - - (02} - {0 2)
Revaluation of investments - - - - L1 - 11
Reclassification from other reserves ansing on
disposal of financial asset mvestment - - - - (66) - (6 6)
Reclassification from other reserves ansing
on disposal of subsidiaries - - - - 18 - 18
Reclassification from cumulative exchange
reserve ansing on disposal of subsidiaries - - - (26 1) - - (26 1)
Taxation on items taken directly
to equity {note 7) - - - - 01 11é 17
Foreign exchange adjustments - - - 07 - - 07
Total comprehensive (expense)income - - - (25 4) (38 4459 4167
Transactions with owners
Dividends - - - - - {233 8) (231 8)
At 31 March 2011 8818 14300 158 8 cn - 664 0 3,1315
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Company statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 March

Company
At l April 2011

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes
Taxation on iterns taken directly to equity (note 7)

Total comprehensive income

At 31 March 2012

Company
At Apnil 2010

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Actuanial losses on defined benefit pension schemes
Taxation on items taken directly to equity (note 7)

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Dividends -

At 31 March 2011

Share

Share premium Retained
capital account earnings Total
£m £m £m £m
8818 11,4300 2,5237 4,8355
- - 112 1 1121
- - (286) (286)
- - 65 65
- - 900 900
8818 14300 26137 49255

Share

Share premium Retaned
capital account earnings Total
£m £m £m £m
8818 14300 25342 438460
- - 2474 2474
- - (326) (326)
- - 85 85
- - 2233 2233
- - (2338 (233%
8818 14300 2,5237 4,8355
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Consolidated and company statements of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March

Group Company
Re-presented*
2012 2011 2012 2011
Note £m £m £m £m
Operating activities
Cash generated from continuing operations 27 492 8 7679 655 3230
Interest paid (167 2) (165 8) (22 3) (24 8)
Interest received and similar tncome 283 402 77 15
Tax pard (39 8) (46 5) (382) (54 3)
Tax received 350 - 350 -
Net cash generated from operating activities
(continming operations) 3491 5958 477 2454
Net cash generated from operating activities
{discontinued operations) - 137 - -
Investing activiies
Proceeds from disposal of discontinued operations 35 268 4 - -
Transaction costs, deferred consideration and cash
disposed 20 979 - -
Proceeds from disposal of discontinued
operations net of transaction costs, deferred
consideration and cash disposed 55 170 5 - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5022) (475 4) - -
Purchase of increased shareholding n joint venture - (50) - -
Purchase of other mtangible assets (17 3) (20 2) - -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment 48 98 - -
Grants and contributions received 130 127 - -
Purchase of investments 13 22) - - -
Net cash used tn investing activities (continuing
operations) (498 4) (307 6) - -
Net cash used 1n mmvesting activities
(discontinued operations) - 527 - -
Financing activities .
Proceeds from borrowings 4463 o4 1 485 309
Repayment of borrowings 2317 (112 6) 250 (252)
Dividends paid to equity holders of the company 9 - (233 8) - (231 8)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
activities (continuing operations) 214 6 (252 3) 235 (228 1)
Net cash used n financing activities
(discontinued operations) - (438) - -
Effects of exchange rate changes
(continuing operations) 05 - . (19)
Effects of exchange rate changes
(discontinued operations) - (13) - -

Net icrease 1n cash and cash
equivalents (continuing operations) 658 359 712 154
Net decrease n cash and cash

equivalents (discontinued operations) - a5 1) - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year 16 246 8 256 0 2369 2215
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 16 3126 246 8 308 1 2369

* The comparatives have been re-presented to show grants and contributions receved of £12 7 million
separately within investing activities (2011 previously included within decrease 1n provisions and payables
as part of cash generated from continuing operations)
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Accounting policies

The principal accounting poficies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below

a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internanonal Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU), including International Accounting Standards
(IAS) and Interpretations 1ssued by the Internationat Financtal Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC)

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of
financial instruments, the transfer of assets from customers and the revaluation of infrastructure assets to
fair value on transition to IFRS

The preparation of financial statements, i conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) under IFRS, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of
assets and habilities at the date of the financial statements and the amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting periods presented Although these estimates are based upon management’s best
knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ulttmately may differ from these estimates

The adoption of the following standards and interpretations, at 1 April 2011, has had no materral impact on
the group’s financial statements

‘Improvements to IFRSs (2010)’

This 15 a collection of amendments to seven standards as part of the International Accountmg Standards
Board’s (IASB) programme of annual improvements The improvements were 1ssued 1n May 2010, are
effective for pertods commencing on or after 1 January 2011 and were endorsed by the EU on 18 February
2011

IFRIC 14 ‘IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mimmum Funding Requirements and thewr
Interaction ’

The nterpretation addresses the interaction between a mmimum funding requirement and the limit placed
by IAS 19 on the measurement of the defined benefit asset or liability The interpretation was 1ssued n
July 2007 and amended in November 2009 It 1s effective for periods commencing on or afier 1 January
2011 and was endorsed by the EU on 19 July 2010

Going concern

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources available to 1t to
continue 1n opetational existence for the foreseeable future and have therefore continued to adopt the going
concern policy 1 preparing the financial statements This conclusion 1s based upon, amongst other
matters, a review of the group’s financial projections together with a review of the cash and committed
borrowing facihities available to the group

Operating profit
Operaung profit 1s stated afler charging operating expenses but before investment income and finance
expense
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Accounting policies {continued)

b) Basis of consolidation

The group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the company and entities controlled
by the company (its subsidiaries), made up to 31 March each year, and incorporate the results of its share
of yoint ventures using proportionate consolidation

The results of subsidiaries and joint ventures acquired or disposed of during the year are included m the
consolidated income statement from the date control 1s obtamned or until the date that control ceases, as
appropriate

Where necessary, adjustments are tmade to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting
policies used under the relevant local GAAP into line with those used by the group

Subsidiaries

Control 1s achieved where the company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies,
generally accompanied by a shareholding of more than one-half of the voting rights of an investee entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities In the parent company accounts, investments are held at cost less
provision for impairment

On acquisition, the assets and habilities and contingent liabihities of a subsichary are measured at their fair
values at the date of acquisition Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the farr values of the
identifiabie net assets acquired 1s recogmsed as goodwill Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below
the fair values of the 1dentifiable net assets acquired 15 credited to the mcome statement 1n the period of
acquisition All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are elimmated on consohdation

Jomt ventures

Jont ventures are entities tn which the group holds an interest on a long-term basis and which are jointly
controlled with one or more parties under a contractual arrangement The group’s share of jont venture
mcome, expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows 1s included n the consolidated financial statements on a
proportionate consohidation basis using the same accounting methods as adopted for subsidiaries

¢) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of the income receivable in the ordinary course of business for goods and
services provided Where relevant, this includes an estimate of the sales value of units supplied to
customers between the date of the last meter reading and the period end, exclusive of value added tax and
foreign sales tax

The group recogmises revenue generally at the time of delivery and when collection of the resulting
recervable 1s reasonably assured Should the group consider that the criteria for revenue recognition are not
met for a transaction, revenue recogmtion would be delayed until such time as the transaction becomes
fully earned or collectability 1s reasonably assured Payments received in advance of revenue recogmtion
are recorded as deferred income

d) Borrowing costs and finance income
Except as noted below, all borrowing costs and finance income are recognised in the income statement n
the period in which they are accrued

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 1ssue of a financial asset or financial
ltability are included n the minial fair value of that instrument

Where barrowing costs are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset,
such costs are capitalised as part of the specific asset
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Accounting policies (continued)

e) Taxation
The taxation expense represents the sum of current taxation and deferred taxation

Current taxation

Current taxation, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 1s based upon the taxable profit for the
period and 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid or recovered using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at each reporting date

Taxable profit differs from the net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further excludes 1tems that are never
taxable or deductible

Current taxation 1s charged or credited n the imcome statement, except when 1t relates to items charged or
credited to equity, 1n which case the current taxation 15 also dealt with in equity

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and habilities 1 the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit Deferred tax habilities are provided, using the habihty method, on all
taxable temporary differences at each reporting date Such assets and lhabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the miial recogmtion (other than m a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities n a transaction that affects nerther the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit

Deferred taxation liabilities are recogmised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and nterests in jomnt ventures, except where the group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

Deferred taxation 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the
temporary timing differences are expected to reverse based upon tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at each reporting date

The camrying amount of deferred taxation assets 1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that 1t 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered

Deferred taxation 1s charged or credited in the 1ncome statement, except when 1t relates to items charged or
credited to equity, im which case the deferred taxation 1s also dealt with in equuty

f) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment comprises water and wastewater infrastructure assets and overground assets
(including properties and plant and equipment)

The useful economic lives of these assets are as follows

o Water and wastewater infrastructure assets
~ Impounding reservoirs 200 years,
-~ Mains and raw water aqueducts 30 to 300 years,
— Sewers 60 to 300 years,
— Sea outfatls 77 years,
¢ Buildings 10 to 60 years,
® Operational assets 5 to 80 years, and
o Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment 3 to 40 years
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Accounting policies (continued)

f) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Water and wastewater infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets comprise a network of water and wastewater systems Expenditure on the
infrastructure assets, including borrowimng costs where applicable, relating to increases in capacity or
enhancements of the network 1s treated as additions Amounts wncurred n maintamung the operating
capability of the network 1n accordance with defined standards of service are expensed 1n the year in which
the expenditure 35 incurred Infrastructure assets are depreciated by writing off their cost, less the estimated
residual value, evenly over their useful economic lives

Employee costs wmcurred 1n implementing the capital schemes of the group are capitalised within
infrastructure assets

Other assets
All other property, plant and equipment 1s stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation

Historical cost includes expenditure that 1s directly attnbutable to the acquisition of the items, imcluding
relevant berrowmg costs, where applicable, for qualifying assets Subsequent costs are mcluded i the
asset’s carrying amount or recogmsed as a separate asset, as appropnate, only when 1t 1s probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow te the group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are mcurred

Freehold land and assets 1 the course of construction are not depreciated Other assets are depreciated by
writing off their cost, less their estimated residual value, evenly over their estimated useful economic lives,
based on management’s judgement and experience

Depreciation methods, residual values and useful economic lives are reassessed annually and, if necessary,
changes are accounted for prospectively The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 15
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s
recognised in other operating costs

Transfer of assets from customers

Where the group recewves from a customer an 1tem of property, plant and equipment {or cash to construct
or acquire an item of property, plant and equipment) that the group must then use, either to connect the
customer to the network, or to provide the customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or services,
or to do both, such items are capitalised at their fair value and included within property, plant and
equipment, with a credit of the same amount to deferred grants and contributions The assets are
depreciated over therr useful economic lives and the deferred contributions released to revenue over the
same pertod (or where the receipt of property, plant and equipment 1s solely to connect the customer to the
network, the deferred contribution 1s released immediately to revenue} The interpretation has been apphed
to transfers of assets from customers received on or after 1 July 2009

Assets transferred from customers are accounted for at fair value If no market exists for the assets then
incremental cash flows are used to arrive at fair value

g) [ntangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation 1s recognised as an asset Following mmtial recognition, gooedwill 1s
subject to impairment reviews, at least annually, and measured at initial value less accumulated impairment
losses Any impairment 1s recogmsed immediately (n the ncome statement and 1s not subsequently
reversed

On disposal of a subsidary, or jent venture, the attributable amount of goodwill 1s included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal

Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated and 1s not included
n determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal
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Accounting policies (continued)

g) Intangible assets {continued)

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are measured wnitially at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful economic hives The carrying armount 1s reduced by any provision for impairment where
necessary

On a business combmnation, as well as recording separable ntangible assets already recognised n the
statement of financial position of the acquired entity at their fair value, 1dentifiable intangible assets that
arise from contractual or other legal nights are also included n the acquisition statement of financial
position at fair value

Internal expenditure 1s capitalised as internally generated intangibles only 1f it meets the critena of [AS 38
‘Intangible Assets’

Amortisation periods for categories of intangible assets are

& Computer software 3 to 10 years, and
& Other intangible assets 2 to 20 years

h) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

Intangible assets with definste useful economic lives and property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets may have
suffered an impairment loss 1f any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estmated
in order to determine the extent of the umpairment loss, if any Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell, and value 1n use Value in use
represents the net present value of expected future cash flows, discounted on a pre-tax basis, using a rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating umt) 1s estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) 1s reduced to 1its recoverable amount
Impairment losses n respect of non-current assets are recognised n the mmcome statement within operating
costs

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the reversal 1s recognised n the income statement and
the carrying amount of the asset 1s increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not so as
to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recogmised in
prior years

1) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised and derecogmised on the group’s statement of
financial position on the trade date when the group becomes/ceases to be a party to the contractual
provisions of the mstrument

Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits include cash at bank and n hand, deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, have a maturity of three months or
less from the date of acquisiion and which are subject to an insigmficant nsk of change in value In the
consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes, cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-
term deposits, net of bank overdrafts
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Accounting policies (continued)

1} Financial instruments (continued)

Financial investments

Investments (other than interests in associates, subsichartes, joint ventures and fixed deposits} are mitially
measured at fair value, including transaction cosis Investments classified as available for sale mn
accordance with TAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement’ are measured at
subsequent reporting dates at fair value Gains and losses arising from changes in fatr value are recogmsed
directly n equity, until the secunity 1s disposed of or 1s determined to be impawred, at which time the
cumulative gan or loss previously recognised in equity 1s included n the net profit or loss for the pertod
Investments classified as loans and receivables 1 accordance with 1AS 39 ‘Fimancial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement® are measured at amortised cost

Trade recetvables

Trade receivables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, less
any umpairment for irrecoverable amounts Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based upon historical
experience of the receivables balance

Trade payables
Trade payables are imtially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost

Fmancial habilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into An equity mstrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its Liabilities

Equity instruments
Equity instruments 1ssued by the group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Borrowings

The group’s default treatment 15 that bonds, loans and overdrafis are imitially measured at fair value being
the cash proceeds received net of any direct 1ssue costs They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
applying the effective interest method, except where they are designated within a far value hedge
relationship or as fair value through profit or loss The difference between the net cash proceeds received at
inception and the principal cash flows due at maturity 15 accrued over the term of the borrowing

Borrowings designated within a fair value hedge relationship

Designation 1s made where 1t can be demonstrated from inception that a lughly effective fair value hedge
exists Where designated, bonds and loans are imitially measured at fair value being the cash proceeds
received net of any direct i1ssue costs They are subsequently adjusted for any change in fair value
attributable to the risk being hedged at each reporting date, with the change being charged or credited to
finance expense 1n the income statement

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued prospectively when the hedging instrument is sold, terminated or
exercised, or where the hedge relationship no longer quahfies for hedge accounting

Borrowings designated at fair value through profit or loss

Designation 15 made where the requirements to designate within a fair value hedge cannot be met at
inception despite there being significant fair value offset between the borrowing and the hedging
denvative Where designated, bonds and loans are imitially measured at fair value being the cash proceeds
recewved, and are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date with changes mn fair value
being charged or credited to finance expense in the income statement

Derivative financial instruments

Dervative financial mstruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date with changes in fair value
being charged or credited to finance expense in the income statement The group enters into financial
derivatives contracts to manage 1ts financial exposure to changes in market rates (see note 18)
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Accounting policies (continued)

]) Inventones
Inventories are stated at cost less any allowance necessary to recogmse damage and obsolescence

Properties held for resale are included at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes the cost
of acquiring and developing the sites, including borrowing costs where applicable

Net reahsable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs
to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution

k) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The group operates two defined benefit pension schemes, which are independent of the group’s finances,
for the majonity of its employees Actuanal valuations of the schemes are carried out as determined by the
pension scheme trustees using the projected umt credit method at intervals of not more than three years, the
rates of contribution payable and the pension cost being determined on the advice of the actuaries, having
regard to the results of these valuations In any intervening years, the actuaries review the continuing
appropriateness of the contribution rates

Defined benefit assets are measured at fair value while habilities are measured at present value The
difference between the two amounts 1s recognised as a surplus or obligation n the statement of financial
position

The cost of providing pension benefits to employees relating to the current year’s service (including
curtallment gains and losses) 1s included within the income statement within employee benefits expense
The difference between the expected return on scheme assets and interest cost on scheme habilities 1s
included within the income statement within investment income or finance expense

Actuarnial gains and losses are recognised outside the income statement in retained earmings and presented
n the statement of comprehensive income

In addition, the group also operates a defined contribution pension section within the Umited Utilities
Pension Scheme Payments are charged as employee costs as they fall due The group has no further
payment obligations once the contnbutions have been paid

Share-based compensation arrangements

The UUG group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation plans n the shares of United Utilities
Group PLC In accordance with the transitional provisions, IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments’ has been
applied to all grants of equity instruments afler 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 April 2004

The group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant The fair value determined at the grant date (s
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest Fair value 15 based upon both simulation and binomal models, according to the
relevant measures of performance 1n accordance with the advice of an expert

At each reporting date, United Utilities Group PL.C revises its estimate of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable with the impact of any revision being recogmised 1n the income statement,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (norminal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised
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I) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, 1t 1s probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setile the obligation, and the amount
can be rehably estimated Expenditure that relates to an existing condition caused by past operations that
does not contribute to current or future earnings 1s expensed Liabilities for environmental remediation are
recognised, and capitalised 1n accordance with IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets’ as appropniate, when there 1s a legal or constructive obligation, environmental assessments indicate
that clean-up 1s probable, and the associated costs can be reliably estimated

m) Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Transactions n foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates applicable on the dates of the
transactions At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated n foreign currencies are
translated into sterling at the relevant rates of exchange applicable on that date Gains and losses ansing on
retranstation are included n net profit or loss for the period Exchange differences arising on investments
n equity instruments classified as available for sale are included n the gains or losses arising from changes
in farr value which are recogmsed directly 1n equity

In order to hedge 1ts exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the group enters into denvative
instruments (see note 18)

Group companies

On consohdation, the statements of financial position of overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)} are translated into sterling at exchange rates
applicable at each reporting date The income statements are translated into sterling using the average rate
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly in which case the exchange rate at the date the transaction
occurred 1s used Exchange differences resulting from the translation of such statements of financial
position at rates ruling at the beginning and end of the period, together with the differences between
income statements translated at average rates and rates ruling at the period end, are dealt with as
movements on the group’s cumulative exchange reserve, a separate component of equity Such translation
differences are recognised as income or expense 1n the period in which the operation 1s disposed of

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate The group has elected to treat goodwill and
fair value adjustments arising on acqusitions before the date of implementation of IFRS 3 ‘Business
Combinations’ (1 April 1999) as sterling denominated assets and habilities

n) Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions receivable in respect of property, plant and equipment are treated as deferred
mcome, which 1s credited to the income statement over the estimated useful economic lives of the related
assets

o) Leases

Leases are classified according to the substance of the transaction A lease that transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee 1s classified as a finance lease All other leases are
classified as operating leases

Operating leases
Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease
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Accounting policies (continued)

p) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applymng its accounting policies, the group 1s required to make certain estimates,
Judgements and assumptions that 1t believes are reasonable based upon the mformation available These
estimates and assumptions affect the amounts of assets and habihties at the date of the financial statements
and the amounts of revenues and expenses recognised during the reporting periods presented

On an ongoing basis, the group evaluates its estimates using historical experience, consultation with
experts and other methods considered reasonable in the particular circumstances Actual results may differ
significantly from the estimates, the effect of which 1s recognised in the period 1n which the facts that give
rise to the revision become known

The following paragraphs detail the estimates and judgements the group believes to have the most
significant impact on the annual results under IFRS

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment (PPE) are based upon management’s
Judgement and experience When management 1identifies that actual useful economic hves differ materially
from the estimates used to calculate depreciation, that charge 1s adjusted prospectively Due to the
significance of PPE investment to the group, variations between actual and estimated useful economic hves
could impact operating results both positively and negatively, although histerically few changes to
estimated useful economic lives have been required

The group 1s required to evaluate the carrying values of PPE for impairment whenever circumstances
indicate, in management’s judgement, that the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable An
imparrment review requires management to make subjective judgements concerning the cash flows, growth
rates and discount rates of the cash generating unmits under review

Revenue recogmtion

The group recognises revenue generally at the time of delivery and when collection of the resulting
receivable 1s reasonably assured When the group considers that the criteria for revenue recognition are not
met for a transaction, revenue recognition 15 delayed until such time as the transaction becomes fully
earned or collectability 1s reasonably assured Payments received m advance of revenue recognition are
recorded as deferred income

Umited Utilities Water PLC raises bills m accordance with its entitlement to receive revenue 1n line with the
linuts established by the peniodic regulatory price review processes For water and wastewater customers
with water meters, the receivable billed 1s dependent upon the volume supplied including the sales value of
an estimate of the units supphed between the date of the last meter reading and the billing date Meters are
read on a cyclical basis and the group recognises revenue for unbitled amounts based upon estimated usage
from the last billing through to each reporting date The estimated usage 1s based upon historical data,
Judgement and assumptions, actual results could differ from these estimates, which would result n
operating revenues bemng adjusted n the period that the revision to the estimates 1s determined For
customers who do not have a meter, the receivable billed 1s dependent upon the rateable value of the
property, as assessed by an independent rating officer

Allowance for doubtful receivables

At each reporting date, the company and each of its subsidiaries evaluate the recoverability of trade
recervables and record allowances for doubtful recevables based upon expenience These allowances are
based upon, amongst other things, customer category and consideration of actual collection history The
actual leve] of receivables collected may differ from the estimated levels of recovery, which could impact
operating results positively or negatively
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Accounting policies (continued)

p) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Accounting for provisions and contingencies

The group 1s subject to a number of claims incidental to the normal conduct of its business, relating to and
including commercial, contraciual and employment matters, which are handled and defended in the
ordinary course of business The group routinely assesses the hikelthood of any adverse judgements or
outcomes to these matters as well as ranges of probable and reasonably estimated losses

Reasonable estimates involve judgements made by management after considering information including
notifications, settlements, estimates performed by independent parties and legal counsel, available facts,
identification of other potentially responsible parties and their ability to contribute, and prior experience A
provision 15 recognised when 1t 1s probable that an obligation exists for which a reliable estimate can be
made after careful analysis of the individual matter The required provision may change in the future due to
new developments and as addiwonal mformation becomes available Matters that either are possible
obligations or do not meet the recognition criteria for a provision are disclosed as contingent liabilities 1n
note 28, unless the possibility of transferring economic benefits 1s remote

Retirement benefits

The group operates two defined benefit schemes, which are independent of the group’s finances Actuanal
valuations of the schemes are carried out as determned by the trustees at intervals of not more than three
years The pension cost under IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ 1s assessed in accordance with the advice of a
firm of actuaries based upon the latest actuarial valuation and assumptions determined by the actuary The
assumptions are based upon infermation supplied to the actuary by the company, supplemented by
discussions between the actuary and management The assumptions are disclosed m note 19 Profit before
taxation and net assets are affected by the actuarial assumptions used These assumptions nclude
investment returns on the schemes’ assets, discount rates, pay growth and increases to pensions in payment
and deferred pensions and may differ from actual results due to changing market and economic conditions
and longer or shorter hives of participants

Derivatives and borrowings — hedging

The group’s default treatment 1s that borrowings are carried at amortised cost, whilst associated hedging
derivatives are recogmised at fair value This accounting measurement mismatch has the potential to
introduce considerable volatihty to both the imcome statement and the statement of financial position
Therefore, where feasible, the group takes advantage of the provisions under 1AS 39 ‘Fmancial
Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ to farr value its borrowing mstruments to reduce this volatility
and better represent the economic hedges that exist between the group’s borrowings and associated
derivative contracts

Where feasible, the group designates 1ts financial nstruments within fair value hedge relationships In
order to apply fair value hedge accounting, it must be demonstrated that the hedging derivative has been,
and will continue to be, a highly effective hedge of the risk being hedged within the applicable borrowing
instrument

Borrowings are designated at fair value through profit or loss where the designation of such borrowings
within a fair value hedge relationship 1s not feasible despite there being a sigmificant fair value offset
between the hedged item and the derivative, and where otherwise the imconsistent accounting treatment
would result in a significant accounting measurement mismatch

Derivatives and borrowings — valuation

Designated borrowings and derivatives recorded at fair value are valued using a net present value valuation
model The model uses applicable interest rate curve data at each reporting date to determine any floating
cash flows Projected future cash flows associated with each financial instrument are discounted to the
reporting date using discount factors derived from the applicable nterest curves adjusted for counterparty
credit risk where appropriate Discounted foreign currency cash flows are converted into sterling at the spot
exchange rate al each reporting date
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p) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of esimation uncertainty (continued)

Derivatives and borrowings — valuation {continued)

The valuation of debt designated n a far value hedge relationship 1s calculated based upon the risk being
hedged as prescribed by 1AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement” The group’s
pohicy 1s to hedge 1ts exposure to changes n the applicable underlying interest rate and it 1s this portion of
the cash flows that 1s included 1n the valuation model (excluding any applicable company credit risk
spread)

The valuation of debt designated at fair value through the profit or loss incorporates an assumed credit nisk
spread in the applicable discount factor Credit spreads are determined based upon indicative pricmg data

Taxation

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires judgements to be made regarding the application
of tax law and the result of negotiations with, and enquiries from, tax authorities in a number of
Jurisdictions

q) Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements

Inmternational Financial Reporting Standards

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following relevant standards and
interpretations were 1n 1ssue but not yet effective The directors anticipate that the group will adopt these
standards and mterpretations on their effective dates

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the following standards and mierpretations may have a
material impact on the group’s financial statements

s IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments — amendment’, 1ssued in October 2010, 1s effective for penods
commencing on or after 1 January 2015 but will not be considered for endorsement by the EU
until the remaming elements of the project have been completed Under the provisions of this
standard, where the group has chosen to measure borrowings at faw value through the profit or
loss the portion of the change n fair value due to changes n the group’s own credit nisk will be
recognised n other comprehensive income rather than within profit or loss  If this standard had
been adopted n the current year £21 3 millhion of gams would have been recognised in other
comprehensive income rather than within profit or loss

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the following standards and terpretations will have no
material impact on the group’s financial statements

¢ Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments’, 1ssued i October 2010, 1s effective for periods
commencing on or after | July 2011 but was endorsed by the EU on 22 November 2011 This will
have a material impact on the group’s financial statements only 1f it enters into any relevant
transactions 1n the future,

All other standards and mterpretations, which are in 1ssue but not yet effective, are not considered relevant
to the activities of the group
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Total revenue

Total revenue, disclosed as required by IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, recogntsed in the consolidated income
statement 1s analysed as follows

2012 2011

£m fm

Provision of goods and services (see note 2) 1,564 9 1,513 3
Revenue 1,564 9 1,5133
Dividend income (see note 4) - 01
Investment income (see note 5) 393 323
Total revenue 1,604 2 1,545 7

During the vear ended 31 March 2012, £0 9 nuthon of revenue was derived from exchanges of goods or
services 1n relation to IFRIC 18 ‘Transfers of Assets from Customers’ (2011 £0 4 rmllion) (see note 22)

2. Segment reporting

As previously reported, United Utilities has reshaped its portfolio over the last few years, from a group
with a wide-rangmg set of activiies and nterests, such as telecommunications, business process
outsourcing, gas and electricity distnibution and metering and international uuility operations, into a focused
regulated UK water and wastewater business The group completed its non-regulated disposal programme
in November 2010 and the residual non-regulated activities now represent less than two per cent of
operating profit

The board of directors of United Utilities Group PLC (the board) n its capacity as the ultimate parent
company 15 provided with information on a single segment basis for the purposes of assessing performance
and allocating resources The board reviews revenue, underlying operating profit, operating profit, assets
and habihities at a consolidated level

In hight of this, the group has a single segment for financial reporting purposes and the segmental
information presented i previous years (s no longer required to be disclosed separately within this note

Segmental information in respect of discontinued operations in the prior year is given in note 8

The group’s revenue predominantly anses from the provision of services and 1s analysed by geographical
area as follows

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total
Rest of Rest of
UK  world Total UK  world Total Group
2012 £m fm £fm £m £m £m £m
External revenue 1,548 9 160 1,5649 - - - 1,564 9
Non-current assets* 8,686 3 571 8,743 4 - - - 8,743 4
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations  Total
Rest of Rest of
UK  world Total UK world Total Group
2011 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
External revenue 1,496 2 171 1,5133 2963 571 3534 1,8667
Non-current assets* 83211 550 83761 - - - 83761

* Non-current assets exclude financial instruments
The group does not rely on any major customers
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3. Dhrectors and employees

Directors’ remuneratton

Restated*

2012 2011

£m £m

Salaries 13 17
Benefits 03 02
Bonus 10 23
Post-employment benefits - 03
Share-based payment charge 04 -
30 45

* The comparatives have been restated to include post-employment benefits of £0 3 mullion

Included within the above 1s salary of £0 7 millton (2011 £0 8 miullion) and bonus of £0 6 million (2011
£1 0 million) in respect of the highest paid director The group paid £m1] 1n the year (2011 £0 2 million) to
the group’s defined contribution pension scheme on behalf of the highest paid director The highest paid
director did not exercise share options in the year

2012 2011

£m £m

Aggregate amounts receivable under long-term incentive plans 01 09
2012 2011

Number Number

Number of directors who received shares 1n respect of qualifying services 3 4
Number of directors who exercised share options 2 3
Number of directors accrumg benefits under defined benefit schemes 1 1
Number of directors accruing benefits under defined contribution schemes - 4

There were two directors with incentive plans which vested during the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011
three directors)

Detatls of the employee Sharesave Scheme and the executive share option scheme operated by United
Utihties Group PLC are given i the UUG group financial statements

All executive directors were either members of the defined benefit section or the defined contribution
section of the group’s pension scheme during the year or had opted for a cash allowance in heu of their
defined contribution pension entittement (see note 19)

Remuneration of key management personnel

2012 2011

£m £m

Salaries and short-term employee benefits 57 71
Post-employment benefits 02 05
Share-based payments 07 -
66 76

Key management personnel comprises all directors and certain sentor managers who are members of the
executive committee
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3. Directors and employees (continued)

Employee benefits expense (including directors)

2012 2011
£m £m
Group
Contmuing eperations
Wages and salaries 194 7 174 6
Social security costs 158 134
Post-employment benefits excluding restructuring costs 17 5 171
Charged 1o capital schemes* (92 6) (62 3)
Employee benefits expense excluding restructuring costs 1354 142 8
Restructuring costs 26 31
Employee benefits expense attributable to continuing operations 1380 1459
Less employee benefits attnibutable to joint ventures (18) (19
Total employee benefits expense excluding joint ventures 136 2 144 0

* Central functional employee costs were recharged across the group m the prior year and capitalised directly, to the extent
appropriate, from other operating costs  Following completion of the non-regulated disposal programme, such costs are now
recharged to capital schemes directly from employee costs 1 or the group, this has resulted i an increase in capitalisation associated
with employee benefit expense, previously included within “other” wn other operating costs

Options over shares of the ultimate parent undertaking, Umted Utilities Group PLC have been granted to
employees of the group under various schemes Details of the terms and conditions of each share option
scheme are given n the United Utilities Group PLC Annual Report 2012 Included within wages and
salaries 15 an expense of £1 2m (2011 ncome of £0 Im) relating to a recharge of share-based payment
costs/income from the ultimate parent undertaking

The table below shows the nature of post-employment benefits

2012 2011
£m fm
Group
Continuing operations
Defined pension expense - current service cost (see note 19) 133 119
Defined contribution pension costs (see note 19) 42 52
175 17 1

Average number of employees during the year (full-time equivalent including directors)

2012 2011
number number

Group
Continuing operations 5,096 4,735

The average number of employces during the prior year for discontinued operations 1s analysed as follows

2011
number
Non-regulated activities 1,656
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4. Operating profit

The following items have been charged/(credited) to the income statement n armving at the group’s
operating profit from continuing operations
Re-presented*

2012 2011
£m £fm
Other operating costs
Hired and contracted services 130 6 166 8
Matenals 554 453
Power 503 491
Property rates 79 4 651
Charge for bad and doubtful receivables (see note 15) 345 306
Other operating leases payable
Property 33 49
Plant and equipment 08 08
Amortisation of deferred grants and contnibutions (see note 22) (69 (69)
Research and development expenses 16 09
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 535 27
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets 26 28
Other 309 4 0)
3880 3581
Other income
Dividend income - on
Other income (4 8) 48)
48 “49)
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment owned assets 2780 2583
Amortisation of other intangible assets 19 8 322
2978 2905

* The comparatives have been re-presented to include loss on disposal of property, plani and equipment of £2 7 million within other
operating costs rather than within other income, as previously presented, as this better reflects the nature of the expenditure ' In
addition, loss on disposal of other tangible assets of £2 8 million in the prior year has been shown separately (2011 previously
presented withan other)

During the year, the group obtained the following services from its auditor, at the costs detailed below

2012 2011

£m £m

Statutory audit of the financial statements 01 03
Other fees to the auditor

Local statutory audits for subsidianes 0 02

Other audit related 01

Taxation advisory services 0
Regulatory reporting 0
Due dihigence and transaction support

01
06
04 13

The 201/11 costs of £1 3 million relate to services provided by the group’s previous auditor, Deloitte
LLP

Included in the above statutory audit fee 15 £20,000 in relation 10 the company for the year ended 31 March
2012(2011 £30,000)
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5. Investment income

2012 2011
£m £m
Interest receivable on short-term bank deposiis held at amortised cost 44 28
Interest receivable from ultimate parent undertaking (nate 26) 349 295
393 323
6. Finance expense
2012 2011
£m £m
Interest payable
Interest payable on borrowings held at amortised cost 2690 2710
Intercompany interest — payable to discontinued operations - 03
2690 2713
Fair value losses/(gains) on debt and derivative mstruments"
Fair value hedge relationships
Borrowings 2100 {20 2)
Designated swaps (205 0) 111
50 @n
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Borrowings designated at fair value through profit or loss 191 (08
Held for trading derivatives — economic hedge {479) 11
(28 8) 03
Held for trading derivatives - 2005-2010 regulatory hedges - (73)
Held for trading derivatives - 2010-2015 regulatory hedges 54 4 14
Held for trading derivatives - regulatory hedges >2015 182 -
Held for trading derivatives - electricity hedges 46 -
Net receipts on swaps and debt under fair value option (77) (62)
Held for trading derivatives — other & (16) GD
Other (09) 48
670 (104
Net fair value losses/(gans) on debt and denivative instruments “ 432 {19 2)
Expected return on pension schemes’ assets (see note 19) (100 5) (1022)
Interest cost on pension schemes’ obligations (see note 19) 103 8 106 0
Net pension interest expense 33 38
3i55 2559

Notes

(1) Parr value lossesf{gains} on debt and denvative instruments includes foreign exchange gams of £223 million (2011 £152
milhion), excluding those on instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss These gans are largely offset by fair value
losses on denvatives

(2) Includes £21 3 mullion gans (2011 £4 1 mullion losses) on the valuation of debt reported at fair value through profit or loss due
to changes in credit spread assumptions

(3) Includes fair value movements 1n relation toe other economic hedge dernivatives relating to debt held at amorused cost
(4) Includes £7 2 mullion mcome (2011 £5 7 nullion} due to mterest on swaps and debt under far value option

Interest payable for the year ended 31 March 2012 s stated net of £9 7 million (2011 £4 4 milhon)
borrowing costs capitalised in the cost of quahifying assets within property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets during the year This has been calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 4 8 per cent
(2011 4 6 per cent) to expenditure on such assets as prescribed by 1AS 23 (Revised 2007) ‘Borrowing
Costs’
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7. Taxation

2012 2011
£m £m
Continuing operations

Current taxation
UK corporation tax 692 70 1
Foreign tax 13 19
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years . (96) (287
609 433

Deferred taxation
Current year 12 6 257
Adjustments m respect of prior years 155 113
28 1 370
Change n taxation rate (104 6) (99 0)
Total deferred taxation credit for the year (76 5) (620)
Total taxation credit for the year (156) (187)

The tables below reconcile the notional tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate to the effective tax rate
for the year
Continuing Discontinued

operations operations Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
£m % £m % £m %
Profit before taxation 3153 - 3153
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 26 per cent 820 260 - - 820 260
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years 59 19 - - 59 19
Change 1n taxation rate (1046) (332) - - (1046) (332)
Net expenses not deductible/other 11 04 - - 11 04
Total tax credit and effective tax rate for the year (156) 49 - - (156 49
Continuing  Duscontinued
operations operations Total
2001 2011 20011 2011 201} 2011
£m % £m % £m %
Profit before taxation 356 6 238 3804
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 28 per cent 99 8§ 280 67 280 1065 280
Adjustments in respect of prior years (174) (49 18 76 (156) “@n
Change n taxation rate 90 (277 09 38 (981) (25%)
Net income not taxable/other 2 @6 (@02 08 23 06)
Total tax (credit)/charge and effective tax rate for
the year (187) (52) 92 386 (95 25)

The deferred taxation credit for the year ended 31 March 2012 mcludes a credit of £104 6 million to reflect
the change enacted on 5 July 2011 to reduce the mamstream rate of corporation tax from 26 per cent to 25
per cent and subsequent change enacted on 26 March 2012 to reduce the manstream rate of corporation tax
further to 24 per cent effective from 1 Apnl 2012 A related deferred taxation charge of £3 9 million 1s
included within items taken directly to equity
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7. Taxation (continued)

The deferred taxation credn for the year ended 31 March 2011 includes £99 0 million which reflects both
the change enacted on 27 July 2010 to reduce the manstream rate of corporation tax from 28 per cent to 27
per cent and the subsequent change enacted on 29 March 2011 to reduce the mainstream rate of corporation
tax from 27 per cent to 26 per cent effective from | Aprit 2011

There will be a further phased reduction in the mainstream corporation tax rate to 22 per cent by 1 April
2014 The total deferred taxation credit in respect of this further reduction 1s expected to be in the region of
£100 0 million

A taxation charge of £5 9 million (2011 £17 4 million credit) arose in the year 1n continwing operations n
relation to the agreement of prior years' UK taxation matters

Taxation on items taken directly to equity

Group 2012 2011
Continuing operations £m £m
Current taxation

Relating to other pension movements (B3 -

Deferred taxation (see note 20)

On actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes (58 (116)
Relating to other pension movements 306 -
Change in taxation rate 39 -
On net fair value losses on cash flow hedges - on
287 (17
Total taxation credit on items taken directly to equity 44) (117
Company 2012 2011
Continuing operations £m £m
Current taxation
Relating to other pension movements (7 -

Deferred taxation (see note 20)

On actuarial losses on defined benefit pension scheme (69) (85)
Relating to other pension movements 71 -
Change 1n taxation rate 10 -
12 (85)

Total taxation credit on ttems taken directly to equity (65) (85)
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8. Discontinued operations

During the prior year, the group completed its non-regulated disposal programme which, including 2009/10
mnvestment disposals, achieved a total enterprise value of £579 2 million In accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations® the relevant disposal groups were therefore
classified as discontinued operations in the consohidated income statement and consolidated statement of

cash flows

2012 2011
£m £m
Revenue - 3534

Employee benefits expense
Excluding restruciuring costs - (88 6)
Restructuring costs - (3%8)
Total employee benefits expense - 924)
Other reorganisation credits - 70
Other operating costs - (2259)
Depreciation and amortisation expense - {63)
Operating profit - 358
Investment mncome and finance expense - {(70)
Evaluation and disposal costs relating to discontinued operations - (50)
Profit before taxation - 238
Current taxation charge - (18)
Deferred taxation charge - 74)
Taxation - (92)
Profit after taxation - 14 6
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations after taxation 51 891
Toatal profit after taxation from discontinued operations 51 1037
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8. Discontinued operations (continued)

The net assets and liabilities at disposal and the profit on disposal of discontinued operations after taxation
1s analysed as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
Total proceeds'” 35 2684
Property, ptant and equipment - (176 7
Goodwill (see note 11) - (179
Other intangible assets - (119 6)
Investments (see note 13} - (6 6)
Non-current trade and other receivables - (594)
Inventories - (1
Current trade and other receivables - (203 1)
Cash and short-term deposits - (500)
Trade and other payables - 2308
Jomnt venture debt - 2287
Provisions (see note 21) - 179
Retirement benefit obligations (see note 19) (0 4) 73
Deferred taxation assets (see note 20) - 40
Net assets disposed of (04) (643)
Transaction and other costs of disposal 20 45 9)
Reclassification from other reserves arising on disposal of financial asset investment - 66
Reclassification from other reserves ansing on disposal of subsidiaries - (s
Reclassification from cumulative exchange reserve arising on disposal of subsidiaries - 261
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations after taxation 51 891

(1) Total fair value of the 2010/11 proceeds comprised cash of £268 4 million [ he enterprise value of £447 1 nullion incorporates
cash consideration recetved added to the market value of the debt disposed of which at the date of disposal totalled £178 7
million Combined with the cash consideration received from the disposal of investments in the prior year of £132 1 mulhon, the
non-regulated disposal programme achieved a total enterprnise value of £579 2 million

The profit on disposal of discontinued operations after taxation for the year ended 31 March 2012 relates
primanly to the receipt of contingent consideration and the release of accrued costs of disposal 1n respect of
certain elements of the group’s prior year non-regulated disposal programme

9. Dividends

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders of the company in the year comprise

2012 2011
£m £m
Orduwnary shares
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2011 at nil pence per share
{2010 17 87 pence) - 1576
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 at nil pence per
share (2011 8 64 pence) - 762
- 2338

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 at mil pence per share
(2011 nil pence) - -
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10. Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures,
Infra- fitings,  Assets n
Land and structure Operational  toolsand  course of
buildings assets assets equipment construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m £fm

Group
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2010 2329 37346 4,813 8 6030 8505 10,234 8
Additions 14 4 126 2 596 369 3328 5699
Transfers 42 840 3231 124 (4237 -
Disposals (33) (677) (33 0) (224 7) (13 6) (3423)
Currency translation
differences - {3 0) - 03 on 28
At 31 March 2011 248 2 3,874 | 5,163 5 4279 7459 10,459 6
Additions 19 169 4 64 3 373 3875 660 4
Transfers 35 106 7 1272 98 (2472) -
Disposals (17 1) {0 8) (59 0) (259) 28 (105 6)
Currency translation
differences 04) 30) - (02) - (3 6)
At 31 March 2012 236 | 4,146 4 5,296 0 448 9 883 4 11,010 8
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2010 747 177 4 1,5259 2972 - 2,0752
Charge for the year 81 266 187 4 416 - 2637
Disposals 28) (31 8) (26 8) 915 - (1529)
Currency translation
differences - (15} - 02 - {13)
At 31 March 2011 800 1707 1,686 5 247 5 - 2,184 7
Charge for the year 83 273 202 5 399 - 2780
Disposals (17 0) - (54 3) (24 0) - (95 3)
Currency translation
differences on (10) - - - (11)
At 31 March 2012 712 1970 1,834 7 263 4 - 2,366 3
Net book value at
31 March 2012 1649 3,949 4 3,461 3 1855 883 4 8,644 5
Net book value at
31 March 2011 1682 3,703 4 3,4770 180 4 7459 82749

At 31 March 2012, the group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment amounting to £331 8 mulhion (2011 £241 7 mulhon)

In addition to these commitments, the group has long-term expenditure plans which include investments to
achieve improvements in performance mandated by Ofwat and to provide for future growth
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10. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Fixtures,
fittings,
tools and
equipment
£m
Company
Cost
At 1 Apnil 2010, 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012 48
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012 44

Net book value at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012 04

The company had no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment at 31
March 2012 or at 31 March 2011

11. Goodwill

£m
Group
Cost
At 1 April 2010 25
Additions 204
Dhsposals (see note 8) (79
At 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012 50

Goodwill at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 relates to the group’s shareholding in AS Tallinna Ves:
(Tallinn Water)

The company has no goodwill
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12. Other intangible assets

Computer Service
software concessions Other Total
£m £m £m £m

Group
Cost
At 1 April 2010 216 1 1278 238 3677
Additions — purchased 183 215 08 40 6
Disposals (13 (149 6) (14 2) (165 1)
Currency translation differences - 03 02) 01
At 31 March 2011 2331 - 102 2433
Additions — purchased 183 - - 183
Disposals {39 3) - - (393)
Currency translation differences - - (0 6) (06)
At 31 March 2012 2121 - 96 2217
Amaortisation
At 1 Apnl 2010 1142 330 119 1591
Charge for the year 320 07 04 331
Disposals (I} 337 (8 9) a2
Currency translation differences - - on 01}
At 31 March 2011 146 1 - 33 149 4
Charge for the year 196 - 02 198
Disposals (36 7) - - (G67)
Currency translation differences - - 03 03)
At 31 March 2012 1290 - 32 1322
Net book value at 31 March 2012 831 - 64 895
Net book value at 31 March 2011 870 - 69 939

The ‘other’ intangible assets category relates mainly to customer contracts and customer lists  The service
concession assets related to operations which were sold as part of the non-regulated activities disposal
programme during the prior year (see note 8)

At 31 Maich 2012, the group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of other
intangible assets amounting to £63 6 million (2011 £43 9 million)

The company has no other ntangible assets The company had no contractual commitments for the
acquisition of other intangible assets at 31 March 2012 or 31 March 2011
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13. Investments

Other
mnvestments
£m

Group
At1 Apnl 2010 77
Additions 01
Revaluations 11
Disposals (see note 8) (6 6)
At 31 March 2011 23
Additions 22
Disposals (an
Currency translation differences on

At 31 March 2012 33

At 31 March 2012, the group's other investments mainly comprnised of its investment in Muharraq Holding
Company 1 Limited and its preference shares m Philwater Holdings Company Inc

Details of principal operating substdiary undertakings and joint ventures are set out below These
undertakings are included within the consohdated financial statements A full list of the group’s subsidiary
undertakings 1s included n the company’s annual return
Proportion of *
share capital
Class of share owned/voting

capital held nights % Nature of business
Subsidiary undertakings
Great Britain
Unuted Utilimes Water PLC Ordinary 100 0* Water and wastewater services and network
management
United Utilibes Property Services Ordinary 1000  Property management
Limited
Joint ventures
Estomia
AS Tallinna Vesi Ordinary 353*  Contract operations and maintenance services

* Shares are held by substdiary underiahings rather than directly by United Unliies PLC

Jomt management of AS Tallinna Ves: (Tallinn Water) 1s based on a shareholders' agreement Tallinn
Water's financial year end 1s not coterminous with that of the group The most recent financial year ended
on 31 December 2011

In relation to the group's mterests m joint ventures, the assets, hiabilities, gross mcome and expenses are
summarised below

2012 2011
£m £m

Group share of jont ventures
Non-current assets 491 524
Current assets 16 6 152
Nen-current liabilities 279 (30 0)
Current habihities G (67
K1l 309
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2012 2011
£m £m

Group share of joint ventures
Gross income 157 1211
Expenses &N (94 8)
Taxation (13) (2 4)
Profit after taxation 63 239

Included within the prier year joint venture income statement measures disclosed n the table above are
gross income of £108 3 million, expenses of £89 3 nullion and taxation of £0 5 mullion relating to entities
that were dtsposed of during the year ended 31 March 2011 and hence were recorded within the results for
discontinued operations (see note 8)

The jownt ventures have no significant contingent liabihties to which the group 1s exposed and the group
has 1ssued guarantees of £54 million to its jomnt ventures (2011 £59m) which are mcluded mn the
contingent habilities total disclosed n note 28

Shares in
subsichary
undertakings
£m

Company
At 1 Apnil 2010 6,161 0
Additions 30170
Impairment charge (1,501 7
Disposals (1,499 8)
At 31 March 2011 6,176 5
Additions 1259
Impairment charge (183)
Disposals (184 1)

At 31 March 2012 6,1000

During the year ended 31 March 2012, there was an addition of £125 9 million investment 1a the ordinary
shares of United Utilities Investments (No 2) Limited

Also during the year, an impaiwrment review was performed supporting the carrying value of the investment
of £6,100 0 mulhon This resulted in an impairment of £17 3 nullion against investments in NB Telecom
(10M) Limited and an impairment of £1 0 million was also taken agamnst investments 1n United Utilities
Investments (No 3) Limited

Total disposals during the year were £184 1 mullion of which £183 0 milhon related to the strike off of
investments including £125 9 muliion investments in the ordinary shares of United Utilities Investments
(No 2) Limited and £54 9 mullton in the ordmary shares of United Utilities Financial Services Limited
The disposals resulted i £205 2m reahisation of value through receipt of dividends

As reported in the prior year, additions of £3,017 0 mullion included £1,499 8 mullion investments 1n the
ordinary shares of United Utilities Investments (No 7) Limited and a capital contribution of £17 4 milhon
to United Utihities Utility Solutions Holdings Limited Also, duning the year ended 31 March 2011, the
company entered into a stock lending agreement with United Utilihes Investment Partnerships (No 2) LP
(UUIP), transferring 476 million ordinary shares 10 United Utilities North West PLC resulting in additional
mvestments 1n the parent companies of UUIP, bemg £1,187 9 million in United Utilities Employee Share
Trust, £296 9 million m Umted Utilities (Jersey) Investments (No 6) Limited and £15 0 militon 1n United
Utilities Investments {(No 3) Limited
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13. Investments (continued)

Also n the prior year, an impairment of £1,500 8 million was taken against investments in United Utihties
One Limited following a £1,500 8§ miilion reahsation of value through receipt of dividends An impairment
of £0 9 million was also taken agamst investments in United Utilities Investments (No 3) Lumited

The above mentioned transfer of ordinary shares in United Utilities North West PLC resulted 1n a disposal
of £1,499 8 milhion

14. Inventories

2012 2011
Group £m £m
Properties held for resale 423 429
Other inventories 51 47
474 476
The company has no inventories
15. Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Trade receivables 2605 2435 04 39
Less allowance for doubtful receivables (78 4) (352) (0 4) (06)
Trade receivables net 182 1 1883 - 33
Amounts owed by subsidiary
undertakings - - 1,239 3 1,6727
Amounts owed by uluimate parent
undertaking (see note 26) * 1,7352 1,501 9 - 01
Amounts owed by related parties
(see note 26) 10 27 - -
Other debtors i58 156 - 03
Prepayments and accrued income 103 6 902 01 62

2,0377 1,798 7 1,239 4 1,682 6

* Included in net amounts owed by the ultimate parent undertaking 1s £9 0 mllon for the group (2011 £0 1 mulhion) and £nul for the
company (2011 £0 1 nullion} relating to net group tax relief recervable from United Unilities Group PLC

Trade and other receivables have been analysed between non-current and current as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £fm £m £m

Non-cuirent 11 - - -
Current 2,036 6 1,798 7 1,2394 1,682 6
2,0377 1,798 7 1,239 4 1,682 6
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Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated net of allowances for doubtful receivables, an analysis

of which 1s as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m

At the start of the year 552 206 6 06 14
Amounts charged/{credited) to operating expenses

- contmuing operations 345 306 on (08

Amounts charged to operating expenses

- discontinued operations - 20 - -

Trade receivables written off (113) (170 1) - -

Disposed of during the year - (139) on -

At the end of the year 784 552 04 06

At cach reporting date, the company and each of its subsidiaries evaluate the recoverability of trade

recetvables and record allowances for doubtful receivables based upon experience

During the year ended 31 March 2011, £131 1 million of debt was written off as a result of a detailed
review of the group’s trade receivables balance This debt was significantly provided, therefore, the charge

for bad and doubtful receivables as a result of this exercise was a lewer amount of £2 5 million

In the company, gross amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings relating to non-trading subsidiary
undertakings are stated net of allowances for doubtful receivables, an analysis of which 1s as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
Company
At the start of the year 806 829
Amounts charged to operating expenses 81 22
Amounts written off (4 (43)
At the end of the year 873 806
Ageing of gross receivables
The following table provides information regarding the ageing of gross receivables
Aped
Aged between Aged
less than one year and  greater than Carrymng
one year two years two years value
Group £m £m fm £m
At 31 March 2012
Trade receivables - gross 1397 552 656 260 5
Amounts owed by ultimate parent undertaking 2354 - 1,499 8 1,735 2
Amounts owed by related parties 10 - - 10
Other debtors 154 - 04 158
Prepayments and accrued income 103 6 - - 103 6
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15. Trade and other receivables (continued)
Agemng of gross recervables (continued)

Aged
Aged between Aged

less than one year and  greater than Carrying

one year two years two years value
Group £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2011
Trade receivables - gross 147 2 43 4 529 2435
Amounts owed by ultimate parent undertaking - 374 1,464 5 1,5019
Amounts owed by related parties 25 o1 01 27
Other debtors 156 - - 156
Prepayments and accrued income 902 - - 902

The group manages its regulated bad debt nsk by providing against gross trade receivables This allowance
1s calculated by reference to customer categories rather than on the age profile of gross debtor balances It
15 therefore not possible to age the allowance for doubtful recervables

Aged
Aged between Aged

less than one year and  greater than Carrying
‘ one year two years two years value
Company £m £m £m fm
At 31 March 2012
Trade receivables - gross - - 04 04
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings — gross 2550 1362 9354 1,326 6
Prepayments and accrued mcome 01 - - 01
At 31 March 211
Trade recervables - gross 33 - 06 3g
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings — gross 3102 198 1,423 4 1,753 4
Other debtors - 03 - 03
Prepayments and accrued income 62 - - 62

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are a sum of all subsidiary balances where the total of inter-
company tax, debt, interest and trade balances 1s 1n a net receivable position The recoverability of these
balances has been assessed at the year end, and except for the allowance for doubtful recervables detailed
below, the balances are deemed to be fully recoverable

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair
value at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011

16. Cash and eash equivalents

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m

Cash at bank and 1n hand 12 4 173 01 13

Short-term bank deposits 3088 2379 3081 2357

Cash and short-term deposits 3212 2552 3082 2370

Bank overdrafis {included in borrowings, see note 17) (86) 84) {0 1) on
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement

of cash flows 3126 246 8 308 | 2369

Cash and short-term deposits include cash at bank and in hand, deposits and other short-term highly liquid
mvestments which are readily convertible nto known amounts of cash and have a maturity of three months
or less
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17. Borrowings

The following analysis provides information about the contractual terms of the group’s borrowings

2012 2011
Group £m £m
Non-current habhties
Bonds 4,491 1 4,208 5
Bank and other term borrowings 1,2370 995 1
5,728 1 5,203 6
Current habihties
Bonds 70 -
Bank and other term borrowings 1110 98 9
Bank overdrafts (see note 16) 86 84
Amounts owed to ultimate parent undertaking 332 335
159 8 140 8
5,8879 5,344 4
Terms and debt repayment schedule
The principal economic terms and conditions of outstanding borrowings were as follows
Year of Fair Carrying Farr Carrying
Currency final value value value value
repayment 2012 2012 2011 2011
Group fm £m £m £m
Borrowings in fair value hedge relationships
5 625% 300m bond GBP 2027 3409 3778 3102 3277
5 75% 375m bond GBP 2022 4304 4216 3907 3716
5 375% 150m bond GBP 2018 1771 176 1 163 8 162 8
5 00% 200m bond GBP 2035 2021 244 6 1863 2082
4 25% 500m bond EUR 2020 460 1 4717 4362 4520
4 55% 250m bond usD 2018 163 6 179 2 1554 1652
5375% 350m bond UsD 2019 2350 262 8 2250 242 4
5 02% JPY 10bn dual currency loan JPY/USD 2029 767 956 735 879
Borrowings designated at fair value
through profit or loss
6 875% 400m bond usD 2028 2833 2833 2643 264 3
1 135% 3bn bond JPY 2013 226 226 225 225

74




United Utilities PL.C

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

17. Borrowings (continued)

Year of Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
Currency final value value value value
repayment 2012 2012 2011 2011
£m £m £m £fm
table continued from previous page
Borrowings measured at amortised cost
1 5802%+RP1 100m L bond GBP 2042 1167 122 1 102 8 1163
1 7829%+RP1 100m 1L bond GBP 2040 1236 1225 109 5 1167
1 9799%+RP1 100m IL bond GBP 2035 1283 123 8 1153 1179
3 375%+RPI 50m IL bond GBP 2032 863 658 791 626
1 3258%+RP1 50m IL bond GBP 2041 551 611 485 582
1 397%+RPI S0m IL bond GBP 2046 554 611 48 2 582
| 3805%+RPI 35m IL bond GBP 2056 365 417 285 401
1 435%+RPI 50m IL bond GBP 2056 531 596 416 573
1 556%+RPI 50m IL bond GBP 2056 556 598 435 575
1 5865%+RP1 50m IL bond GBP 2056 562 601 437 578
1 591%+RPI 25m IL bond GBP 2056 280 300 21 8 288
1 662%+RPI 100m IL bond GBP 2056 1152 1203 897 1157
1 815%+RP1 100m IL bond GBP 2056 1211 1205 94 3 1159
1 847%+RPI 100m IL bond GBP 2056 1230 1210 954 1164
1 5366%+RPI 50m IL bond GBP 2043 581 609 510 580
1 7937%+RPI 50m IL bond GBP 2049 613 60 8 558 579
1 585%+RPI1 100m IL bond GBP 2057 1082 1157 873 1113
1 702%+RPI 50m IL bond GBP 2057 568 584 456 56 1
2 40%+RP1 70m IL bond GBP 2039 891 78 1 738 751
1 66%+RP135m IL bond GBP 2037 393 40 1 317 386
1 97%+RPI 200m IL loan GBP 2016 2554 2405 2070 228 5
1 61%+RPI1 50m IL loan GBP 2020 617 549 515 528
1 73%+RPI 50m IL loan GBP 2020 622 548 520 527
1 84%+RP1 50m IL loan GBP 2020 626 548 524 527
| 88%+RPI 50m IL. loan GBP 2020 626 54 6 527 525
1 90%+RPI 50m IL loan GBP 2020 629 547 528 526
1 93%+RPI 50m IL loan GBP 2020 629 546 529 526
2 10%+RPI 50m IL loan GBP 2020 636 545 537 524
2 46%+RPI 50m IL loan GBP 2020 654 545 553 525
1 23%+RPI 50m IL loan GBP 2029 494 520 429 500
1 29%+RPI 50m IL loan GBP 2029 49 8 516 - -
1 12%+RPI 50m IL loan GBP 2029 480 513 - -
1 10%+RPI 50m IL loan GBP 2029 478 512 - -
0 75%+RPI 50m IL lean GBP 2029 439 501 - -
0 76%+RPI 50m IL lean GBP 2030 437 499 - -
1 15%+RPI 50m IL loan GBP 2030 46 5 497 - -
1 11%+RPI 50m IL loan GBP 2030 452 499 - -
6 125% 425m bond GBP 2015 4897 4297 4723 4309
0 24%+LIBOR (floating) 6 5m bond GBP 2013 65 70 65 67
1 30%+LIBOR (floating) 5bn bond IPY 2017 409 383 410 378
Long-term bank borrowings - floating GBP 2011-2012 - - 1999 2000
Commussion for New Towns loan - fixed GBP 2053 531 301 499 304
Jont venture borrowings Various Various 279 279 301 301
Short-term bank borrowings - fixed GBP 2012 1108 1108 463 463
Other borrowings
Amounts owed to ultimate parent undertaking  GBP 2012 332 332 335 335
Bank overdrafts GBP 2012 86 86 84 84

58630 58879

50961 53444
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17. Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are unsecured Funding raised in currencies other than sterhing 1s generally swapped to sterling
to match funding costs to income and assets Abbreviations used in the above table are defined below

The following analysis provides information about the contractual terms of the company’s borrowings

2012 2011
Company Lm £m
Non-current habilities
Bonds 689 7 660 8
6897 660 8
Current habilities
Bonds 70 -
Bank and other term borrowings 697 463
Bank overdraft 01 01
Amounts owed to subsidhary undertakings 7107 7814
Amounts owed to ultimate parent undertaking 332 335
8207 8613
1,510 4 1,522 1

Terms and debt repayment schedule
The principal economic terms and conditions of outstanding borrowings were as follows

Year of Fair Carrying Fair Carrying

Currency final value value value value

repayment 2012 2012 2011 2011

Company £m £m £m £m
Borrowings in fasr value hedge relationships

4 55% 250m bond UsD 2018 163 6 179 2 1554 1652

5 375% 350m bond UsD 2019 2350 262 8 2250 242 4

Borrowings measured at amortised cost

6 875% 400m bond UsD 2028 2833 2477 2643 246 5

0 24%+LIBOR (floating) 6 5m bond GBP 2013 65 70 65 67

Short-term bank borrowings — fixed GBP 2012 69 7 697 463 463

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings GBP 2012 7107 7107 7814 7814
Amounts owed to ulimate parent undertaking GBP 2012 332 332 335 335

Other borrowings
Bank overdrafis GBP 2012 01l 01 01 01

1,5021 1,5104  1,5125 11,5221

Borrowings are unsecured

Currency
GBP  pound sterling
EUR  euro

USD  Usmnted States dollar
Y Japanese yen

Index-hinked debt

IL Index-linhed debt ~ this debt 15 adjusted for movements in the Retail Price Index with reference to a base RPI established at
trade date

RPI The UK general index of retail prices (for all items) as published by the Office for National Statistics (Jan 1987=100)
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18. Financial instruments

Risk management

The UUG board is responsible for treasury strategy and governance, which 1s reviewed on an annual basis
The annual treasury strategy review covers the group’s funding, hquidity, capital management and interest
rate management strategies, along with the delegation of specific funding and hedging authorities to the
treasury committee

The treasury commuitee, a sub-committee of the UUG board, has responsibility for setting and monitoring
the group’s adherence to treasury policies along with oversight in relation to the activities of the treasury
function

Treasury policies cover the key financial risks liquidity risk, credit nisk, market nsk (inflation, interest rate,
electricity price and currency) and capital nsk These polictes are reviewed by the treasury committee for
approval on at least an annual basis, or following any major changes in treasury operations and/ or
financial market conditions

Day-to-day responsibility for operational comphance with the treasury policies rests with the treasurer An
operational comphance report 18 provided monthly to the treasury committee, which details the status of
the group’s comphance with the treasury policies and highhghts the level of nisk against the appropriate
risk limits in place

The group’s treasury function does not act as a profit centre and does not undertake any speculative trading
activity

The group’s exposure to risk and its objectives, policies and processes for managing risk and the methods
used for measuring risk have changed since the prior year in respect of mflatton, interest rate and electricity
price risk, which 1s discussed in the respective sections below

Liqdity nisk

The group looks to manage 1ts hquidity risk by mamtaining hquidity within a UUG board approved
duration range Liquidity 1s actively monitored by the group’s treasury function and 15 reported monthly to
the treasury commuttee through the operational comphance report

At 31 March 2012, the group had £991 2 million (2011 £1,184 6 million) of available liquidity, which
comprised £321 2 million (2011 £255 2 mullion) cash and short-term deposits and £670 0 mulhon (2011
£929 4 milhon) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities Short-term deposits mature within three
months and bank overdrafts are repayable on demand

The group and company had available commiited borrowing facilities as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m

Expiring within one year 2500 3750 1250 2500
Expiring after one year but in less than two years 2200 2500 1200 1250
Expiring after more than two years 2000 3200 750 170 0
Total borrowing facilities 6700 9450 3200 5450
Offsetting bank guarantees - (15 6) - (156)
Undrawn borrowng facihties 6700 929 4 3200 5294

At 31 March 2012, the group had an additional commutted borrowing facihty of £50 0 mulion and the
company had an additional committed borrowing facthty of £10 0 million expiring after more than two
years that was not available to be drawn until September 2013
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18. Financial instruments (continued)

These facilities are arranged on a bilateral rather than a syndicated basis, which spreads the maturities more
evenly over a longer time period, thereby reducing the refinancing nsk by providing several renewal points
rather than a large single financing point

Maturity analysis

Concentrations of risk may arise if large cash flows are concentrated within particular tume periods The
maturity profile in the following table represents the ferecast future contractual principal and interest cash
flows 1n relation to group and company’s financial labilities with agreed repayment periods and
derivatives on an undiscounted basis Derivative cash flows have been shown net where there 15 a
contractual agreement to settle on a net basis, otherwise the cash flows are shown gross

More
Adjust- | year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 than 5
Total?  ment® orless years years vyears years years
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2012
Bonds 10,049 4 2140 1902 1680 5940 1440 8,7392
Bank and other term -
borrowings 1,8859 103 4 365 264 486 3294 1,341 6
Amounts owed to ultimate
parent undertaking 332 332 - - - - -
Adjustment to carrying
value®® (6,080 6) (6,0806)
Financial liabilities excluding
derivatives and trade and
other payables at amortised
cost 58879 (6,0806) 3506 2267 1944 6426 4734 10,0808
Derivatives
Payable 962 4 875 751 702 401 354 654 1
Recewvable (1,481 6) (1582) (1841) (1276) (591) (586) (8940)
Adjustment to carrying
value®® 616 616

Dervatives — net assets (457 6) 616 (707 (1090) (574) (190) (232) (2399
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Matunity analysis {continued)

More
Adjust- 1 year 1-2 2-3 34 4-5 than 5
Total'?  ment® orless years years years years years
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2011
Bonds 10,1192 1663 1739 1918 1690 5950 88232
Bank and other termt
borrowings 1,562 i 1312 174 4 357 246 297 1,166 5
Amounts owed to ultimate
parent undertaking 335 335 - - - - -
Adpustment to carrying
value'? (6,3704) (6,370 4)
Financial habilities excluding
denvatives and trade and
other payables at amortised
cost 53444 (6,3704) 3310 3483 2275 1936 6247 99897
Dernivatives
Payable 1,0859 898 697 805 528 474 7457
Receivable (1,4397) (1164) (1016) (1452) (880) (566) (9319
Adjustment to carrying
value' 735 735
Derivatives — net assets (280 3) 735 (266) (319 (647) (352) (92) (1862)
More
Adjust- 1 year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 than 5
Total'? ment” orless years years years years  years
Company £m £m £m im £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2012
Bonds 1,053 0 4238 362 363 364 364 8649
Bank and other term borrowings 699 699 - - -
Amounts owed to ultimate
parent undertaking 332 332 - - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary
undertakings 7107 7107 - - -
Adjustment to carrying value® (356 4) (356 4)
Financial liabilities excluding
derwvatives and trade and
other payables at amortised
cost 1,5104 (3564) 8566 362 363 364 364 8649
Denvatives
Payable 2603 306 73 94 46 53 2031
Receivable (406 7) (442 (762 (192) (119 (119) (2433)
Adjustment to carrying value®® 77 77
Derivatives — net assets (1387 77 (136) (689) (98 (73) (66) (402)
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Maturity analysis (continued) More
Adjust- 1 year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 than 5
Total” ment® orless years years years years years

Company £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2011

Bonds 1,082 8 362 430 366 366 367 8937
Bank and other term borrowings 46 4 46 4 - - - - .
Amounts owed to ultimate

parent undertaking 335 335 - - - - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary

undertakings 7814 7814 - - - - -

Adjustment to carrying value® (422 0) (422 0)

Fmancial hathities excluding
derivatives and trade and
other payables at amortised

cost 1,5221 (4220) 8975 430 366 366 367 8937
Denivatives

Payable 3i00 405 89 14 4 16 6 91 2205
Receivable (405 9) (556) (190) (505) (19 (120) (2569)
Adjustment to carrying value® 100 100

Derivatives — net assets (85 9) 100 (151 (101) (361 47 (29 ((364)
Notes

(1) Torecast future cash flows are calculated, where applicable, utihsing forward nterest rates based upon the interest environment
at vear end and are, therefore suscepuble to changes m market conditions For index-linked debt it has been assumed that RPI
will be 2 65 per cent over the life of each bond

(2) The carrying value of debt 1s calculated following various methods m accordance with I1AS 39 ‘Fmancial Instruments
Recogmtion and Measurement” and therefore this adjustment reconciles the undiscounted forecast future cash fiows to the
carrying value of debt 1n the statement ef financial position

Credit nsk

Credit risk arises principally from trade finance (the supply of services to customers) and treasury activities
{(the depositing of cash and holding of derivative and foreign exchange nstruments}) The group and
company do not beheve they are exposed to any material concentrations of credit risk

The group manages its risk from trade finance through the effective management of customer relationships

Concentrations of credut nisk with respect to trade recervabies are limrted due to the group’s customer base
consisting of a large number of unrelated households and businesses The Water Industry Act 1991 (as
amended by the Water Industry Act 1999) prohibits the disconnection of a water supply and the limiting of
supply with the intention of enforcing payment for certam premises including domestic dwellings

However, allowance 1s made by the water regulator in the price limits at each price review for a proportion
of debt deemed to be irecoverable Considering the above, the directors believe there 1s no further credit
nisk provision required 1n excess of the allowance for doubtful receivables (see note 15)

The group manages its risk from treasury activities by establishing a total credit limit by counterparty,
which comprises a counterparty credit imit and an additional settlement Limt to cover mtra day gross
settlement cash flows In addition, potential derivative exposure imuts are also established to take account
of potential future exposure which may arise under derivative transactions These limits are calculated by
reference to a measure of capital and credit ratings of the individual counterparties and are subject to a
maximum single counterparty hmit A control mechanism to trigger a review of specific counterparty
linits, iwrespective of credit rating action, 1s 1n place This entails daily monitoring of counterparty credit
default swap levels and/or share price volatiity Credit exposure (s monitored daily by the group’s treasury
function and 1s reported monthly to the treasury commuttee through the operational complance report
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Credit sk (continued)

At 31 March the maximum exposure 1o credit nsk for the group and company 1s represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset 1n the statement of financial position

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m

Cash and short-term deposits (see note 16) 3212 2552 3082 2370
Trade and other receivables (see note 15) 2,0377 1,798 7 1,239 4 1,682 6
Investments (see note 13) 33 23 - -
Derivative financial instruments 6174 3653 138 8 99 |

29796 2,421 5 1,686 4 2,0187

Included within trade and other recervables for group are amounts owed by the ultimate parent undertaking
of £1,735 2 mulhion (2011 £1,501 9 million)

The credit exposure on derivatives 1s disclosed gross of any collateral held At 31 March 20312 the group
held £110 8 million (2011 £46 3 million) and the company held £69 7 million (2011 £46 3 milhon) as
collateral i relation to derivative financial instruments (included within borrowings 1n note 17) In respect
of cash and short-term deposits and denivative financial instruments, the group does not have a matenal
exposure to any financial institutions based within the eurozene, with the exception of Germany, and has
not experienced any significant credit 1ssues durmng the financial year

Market risk

The group’s exposure to market risks primarily result from its financing arrangements and the economic
return which 1t 1s allowed on the regulatory capital value (RCV)

The group uses a variety of financial instruments, including derivatives, 1n order to manage the exposure to
these rsks

Inflation risk

The group earns an economic return on its RCV, compnising a real return through revenues and an inflation
return as an uplift to ts RCV To the extent that nominal debt habilittes finance a proportion of the RCV,
there 1s an asset habihty mismatch which potentially exposes the group to the nisk of economic loss where
actual inflation 1s lower than that implicitly locked i through nominal debt

The group’s index-hnked borrowings, which are Iinked to RPI inflation, form an economic hedge of the
group’s regulatory assets, which are also linked to RPIinflation In particular, index-linked debt delivers a
cash flow benefit compared to nominal debt, as the inflation adjustment on the index-linked habihties 15 a
deferred cash flow unul the maturity of each financial imstrument, providing a better maich to the inflation
adjustment on the regulated assets, which 1s recognised as a non-cash uplift to the RCV

In addition, the group’s pension obligations also provide an economic hedge of the group’s regulatory
assets During the prior year, a revised pension scheme funding mechanistm was introduced so that future
contributions will be flexed for movements in RPI and smoothed over a rolling five-year period, providing
a natural hedge aganst any inflationary uphft on the RCV

The group secks to manage this nisk by identifying opportunities to amend the economic hedge currently in
place where deemed necessary and subject to relative value Inflation nsk 1s reported monthly to the
treasury committee 1n the operational compliance report
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Inflation risk {(continued)
The carrying value of index-linked debt held by the group 1s as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
Index-linked debt 2,667 0 2,2157

Sensitivity analysis

As required by IFRS 7, the sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis of the amount of index-
linked debt 1n place as at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011, respectively As a result, this analysis relates
to the position at the reporting date and 15 not mdicative of the years then ended, as these factors would
have varied throughout the year The following table details the sensitivity of profit before taxation to
changes m the RPI on the group’s index-linked borrowings

2012 2011
Group £m £m
Impact on profit before taxation and equity
| per cent increase in RP1 (27 2) (22 6)
1 per cent decrease in RP1 272 226

Brachets denote a reduction in profit

This table excludes the hedging aspect of the group’s regulatory assets, which bemng property, plant and
equipment, are not financial assets as defined by 1AS 32 and are typically held at cost or deemed cost less
accumulated depreciation on the consohidated statement of financial position In addition, the table
excludes the hedging aspect of the group’s pension obligations

The analysis assumes a one per cent change in RPI having a corresponding one per cent impact on this
pesition over a |2-month period It should be noted, however, that there 1s a time lag by which current RPI
changes impact on the income statement and the analysis does not incorporate this factor The portfolio of
mdex-linked debt 1s either calculated on a three or exght month lag basis Therefore, at the reporting date
the mdex-lmked interest and principal adjustments impacting the income statement are fixed and based
upon the annual RP1 change either three or eight months earlier

The company has no material exposure to inflation risk

Interest rate risk

The group’s policy 1s to structure debt in a way that best matches its underlying assets and cash flows The
group earns an economic return on 1ts RCV, comprising a real return through revenues, determined by the
real cost of capital fixed by the regulator for each five-year regulatory pricing perted, and an flation
return as an uphft to its RCV

The preferred form of debt therefore 1s sterhing index-hnked debt which incurs fixed interest, in real terms,
and forms a natural hedge of regulatory assets and cash flows

Where conventional long-term debt 15 raised in a fixed-rate form, to manage exposure to long-term interest
rates, the debt s generally swapped at inception to create a floating rate liability for the term of the hability
through the use of interest rate swaps These instruments are typically designated within a fair value
accounting hedge

To manage the exposure to medium-term interest rates, the group has fixed interest costs for a substantial
proportion of the group’s net debt for the duration of the current five-year regulatory pricing period During
the year, the group revised its interest risk management strategy to now extend the fixing of interest rates
out to a ten-year maturity on a reducing balance basis seeking to lock n a rolling average interest rate on
the group’s nominal habilities

The group seeks to manage 1ts nsk by maintaining its interest rate exposure within a board approved range
Interest rate risk 1s reported monthly to the treasury commuttee through the operational comphance report
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Sensitivity analysis

As required by IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures®, the sensitivity analysis has been prepared on
the basis of the amount of net debt and the interest rate hedge positions 1n place at the reporting date As a
result, this analysis 1s not indicative of the years then ended, as these factors would have vaned throughout
the year

The following assumptions were made 1n calculating the interest sensitivity analysis

¢ fair value hedge relationships are fully effective,
s borrowings designated at fair value through profit or loss are effectively hedged by associated swaps,

¢ the mam fair value sensitivity to nterest rates in the statement of financial positton (excluding the
effect of accrued interest) 1s 1n relation to the fixed interest rate swaps which manage the exposure to
medium-term interest rates,

s cash flow sensifivity in the statement of financial position to interest rates 1s calculated on floating
interest rate net debt,

s the sensitivity excludes the impact of mterest rates on post-retirement obligations,
¢  management have assessed one percent as a reasonably possible movement i UK interest rates, and

e all other factors are held constant

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m

Impact on profit before taxation and equity
1 per cent increase in interest rate 329 610 (19 9) 237
1 per cent decrease in interest rate (87 4) (63 6) 215 262

Brackets denote a reduction mn profit

The exposure largely relates to the fair value movements on the group’s fixed interest rate swaps which
manage the exposure to medium-term interest rates
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Repricing analysis

The following tables categorise the group and company’s borrowings, derivatives and cash deposits on the
basis of when they reprice or, if earher, mature The repricing analysis demonstrates the group and
company’s exposure to floating interest rate nsk

More
I year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 than 5
Group Total  orless years years years years years
At 31 March 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings n fair value hedge
relationships
Fixed rate instruments 2,229 4 - - - - - 2,2294
Effect of swaps - 22294 - - - - (2,229 4)
2,2294 22294 - - - - -
Borrowings designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Fixed rate mstruments 3059 - 226 - - - 2833
Effect of swaps - 3059 (22 6) - - - {(2833)
3059 3059 - - - - -
Borrowings measured at
amortised cost
Fixed rate struments 5706 111 03 03 4301 04 284
Floating rate instruments 818 818 - - - - -
Index-linked instruments 26670 2,6670 - - - - -
33194 28599 03 03 430 1 04 28 4
Effect of a fixed mterest
rate hedge - (1,8313) - 4542 3000 3250 752 1
Total external borrowings 58547 3,5639 03 454 5 7301 3254 780 5
Amounts owed to ultimate
parent undertaking 332 332 - - - - -
Total borrowings 5,8879 3,5971 03 454 5 730 1 3254 780 5
Cash and short-term deposits {3212) (3212 - - - - -
Net borrowings 5567 32759 03 454 5 7301 3254 780 5
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Repricing analysis (continued)

More
1 year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 than 5
Group Total or less years years years yeats years
At 31 March 2011 £m £m £m £m £m £m {m
Borrowmgs m faiwr value hedge
relationships
Fixed rate mstruments 20178 - - - - - 20178
Effect of swaps - 2,0178 - - - - (2,017 8)
20178 20178 - - - - -
Borrowmgs designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Fixed rate instruments 286 8 - - 225 - - 264 3
Effect of swaps - 286 8 - (22 5) - - (264 3)
' 2868 2868 - - - - -
Borrowings measured at
amortised cost
Fixed rate instruments 5076 46 6 03 03 03 4313 288
Floating rate instruments 2830 2830 - - - - -
Index-hinked instruments 22157 22157 - - - - -
3,0063 25453 03 03 03 4313 288
Effect of a fixed interest
rate hedge - (1,8313) - - 1,3813 450 0 -
Total external borrowings 53109 3,0186 03 03 11,3816 8813 288
Amounts owed to ultimate
parent undertaking 335 335 - - - - -
Total borrowings 53444 3,052 1 03 03 11,3816 8813 28 8
Cash and short-term deposits (2552 (2552) - - - - -
Net borrowings 50892 27969 03 03 11,3816 8813 288
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Repricing analysis (continued)

More
1 year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 than 5
Total or less years years years years years
Company £m £fm £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2012
Borrowings in fair value hedge
relationshaps
Fixed rate instruments 4420 - - - - - 4420
Effect of swaps - 442 0 - - - - (4420)
442 0 442 0 - - - - -
Borrowings measured at
amortised cost
Fixed rate instruments 3174 697 - - - - 2477
Floating rate instruments 71 71 - . - - -
3245 76 8 - - - - 2477
Total external borrowings 766 5 5188 - - - - 2477
Amounts owed to subsidiary
undertakings 7107 7107 - - - - -
Amounts owed to ultimate
parent undertaking 332 332 - - - - -
Effect of a fixed interest rate hedge - 4060 0 - {400 0) - - -
Total borrowings 1,5104 1,6627 - {400 0) - - 2477
Cash and short-term deposits (3082) (3082) - - - - -
Net borrowings 1,2022  1,3545 - (400 0) - - 2477
More
1 year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 than 5
Total or less years years years years years
Company £m £m £m £m £m £fm £m
At 31 March 2011
Borrowings in fair value hedge
relationships
Fixed rate instruments 4076 - - - - - 407 6
Effect of swaps - 407 6 - - - - (4076)
4076 407 6 - - - - -
Borrowings measured at
amortised cost
Fixed rate instruments 2928 463 - - - - 246 5
Floating rate instruments 68 68 - - - - -
2996 531 - - - - 246 5
Total external borrowings 707 2 460 7 - - - - 246 5
Amounts owed to subsidiary
undertakings 7814 7814 - - - - -
Amounts owed to ultimate
parent undertaking 335 335 - - - - -
Effect of a fixed interest rate hedge - 4000 - - (400 0) - -
Total berrowings 1,5221 16756 - - (400 0) - 246 5
Cash and short-term deposits (2370)  (2370) - - - - -
Net borrowings 1,2851 1,4386 - - (400 0) - 246 5
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Electricity price risk

The group 1s allowed a fixed amount of revenue by the regulator, in real terms, to cover electricity costs for
each five-year regulatory pricing period To the extent that electricity prices remamn floating over this
period, this exposes the group to volatility in 1ts operating cash flows The group’s policy, therefore, 1s to
manage this risk by fixing a proportion of electricity prices in a cost-effective manner

During the year, the group extended 1ts hedging policy, through the use of electricity swap contracts, to fix
the price of a substantial proportion of its anticipated electricity usage out to the end of the AMP n 2015
Previously, the group had fixed electricity prices for up to two years directly with its energy supplier

Sensitivity analysis

As required by IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures,’ the sensitivity analysis has been prepared on
the basis of the amount of electricity swaps 1n place at the reporting date and, as a result, this analysis 1s not
indicative of the years then ended, as this factor would have varied throughout the year

2012
Group £m
Impact on profit before taxation and equity
10 per cent increase in commaodity prices 43
10 per cent decrease in commodity prices (4 3)

Brachets denote a reduction n profit

Currency risk
Currency exposure principally arises m respect of funding raised 1n foreign currencies

To manage exposure to currency rates, foreign currency debt 1s hedged into sterhing through the use of
cross currency swaps and these are typically designated within a fair value accounting hedge

The group seeks to manage its risk by maintaining currency exposure within UUG board approved limits
Currency nisk 1n relation to foreign currency denominated financial instruments 1s reported monthly 1o the
treasury commuittee through the operational compliance report

The group and company have no material net exposure to movements in currency rates

Capital risk management

The group’s objective when managing capital 1s to mawntain a capital structure that enables its primary
subsidiary, Umited Uuhties Water PLC, to retain a credit rating of A3 from Moody’s Investors Services
(Moody’s), which the group believes best mirrors the Water Services Regulation Authornity’s (Ofwat)
assumptions in relation to capital structure The strategy of targeting a credit rating of A3 has been
consistently maintained since 2007

One of Ofwat’s pnimary duties 1s to ensure that water companies are able to finance their functions, m
particular by securing a reasonable return on their capital Therefore, mirrormg Ofwat’s assumptions for
credit ratings (and hence capital structure) should help safeguard the group’s ability to earn a reasonable
retum on its capital, securing access to finance at a reasonable cost and enabling the group to continue as a
gomg concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and credit mvestors, and benefits for other
stakeholders

In order to maintain a credit rating of A3 the group needs to manage its capital structure with reference to
the ratings methodology and measures used by Moody’s The ratings methodology 1s normally based upon
a number of key ratios (such as RCV gearing and adjusted interest cover) and threshold levels as updated
and published from time to time by Moody’s

The group looks to manage its nsk by maintaintng the relevant key financial ratios used by the credit rating
agencies to determine a corporate’s credit rating, within the thresholds approved by the UUG board
Capital risk 1s reported monthly to the treasury committee through the operational compliance report

Further detail on the precise measures and methodologies used to assess water compantes’ credit ratings
can be found n the methodology papers published by the rating agencies
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Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and liabilittes, together with the carrying amounts shown i the statement
of financial position, are as follows

Farr Camrymng Fair Carrymg

value value value value
2012 2012 2011 2011
Group £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Non-current assets
Available for sale investments 25 25 14 14
Loans and receivables
investments 08 08 09 09
Trade and other receivables 11 11 - -
Derivative financial istruments
Fair value hedge derivatives — swaps 4343 4343 2800 2800
Held for trading derivatives — swaps™ 1332 1332 833 833
Current assets
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables 2,0366 22,0366 1,7987 11,7987
Cash and short-term deposits 3212 3212 2552 2552
Derivative financial imstruments
Fair value hedge derivatives — swaps 48 4 48 4 - -
Held for trading derivatives — swaps(z’ 15 15 20 20
Financial habilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables at amortised cost (3780) (3780) (2498) (2498)
Borrowings
Financial habilities in hedge relattonships
Fair value hedge (2,085 9) (2,2294) (1,941 1) (2,017 8)
Financial habihties designated at fair value
through profit or loss (3059) (3059) (2868) (2868)
Other financial habilities (3,311 4) (3,192 8) (2,7274) (2,899 0)

(5,703 2) (5,728 1) (4,955 3) (5,203 6)

Denivative financial instruments

Fair value hedge derivatives — swaps - - 23 23

Held for trading derivatives — swaps'” (1597) (1597) (823) (823)

Current liabiltties

Trade and other payables at amortised cost (4459) (4459) (4330) (433 0)

Borrowings

Other financial liabilities (1598 (1598) (1408) (1408)

Derivative financial instruments

Held for trading derivatives — swaps® 1 on 04) (0 4)

Adjustment for accrued interest” 400 - 387 -
(3,8271) (3,8920) (3,4037) (3,690 7)

Notes

(1) Fair values quoted include accrued wnterest of £40 0 rmihion (2011 £38 7 nullion) in respect of the associaled borrowings This
accrued mterest 18 atso included in the fair value of rade and other payables The ympact on the total fair value of financial
mstrurnents has been removed in the adjustment for accrued interest

(2} Denvatives formung an economic hedge of the currency exposure on borrowings included in these balances were £134 § million
(2011 £85 3 milhon)
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Fair values {(continued)

In order to determune the fair values m the table above, all borrowings and derivatives are valued using a
discounted cash flow valuation model as described within the accounting policies on pages 46 to 56 In
determining fair values, assumptions are made with regard to credit spreads based upon indicative pricing data

In respect of the total change during the year 1n the fair value of financial habilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss for continuing operations of £19 1 mullion loss (2011 £0 8§ milhon gam), £21 3 nullion
gain (2011 £4 1 milhion loss) 1s attributable to changes 1n own credit risk The cumulative amount recognised n
the income staternent due to changes in credit spread was £76 2 million profit (2011 £54 9 million profit) The
difference between the carrying amount and the amount contracted to settle on matunity was a carrying amount
increase of £81 7 milhion (2011 £62 6 million}

Fawr Carrymg Fair Cairying
value value value value
2012 2012 2011 2011
Company £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Non-current assets
Denvative financial mstruments
Fair value hedge derivatives — swaps 1320 1320 99 1 991
Held for trading derivatives — swaps'? 67 67 - -
Current assets
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables 1,239 4 1,239 4 1,682 6 1,682 6
Cash and short-term deposits 3082 3082 2370 2370
Derivative financial instruments
Held for trading derivatives — swaps 01 01 - -
Financial habilities
Non-current iabilities
Borrowings
Financial habilities in hedged relationships
Farr value hedge (398 6) (442 0) (3804 (407 6)
Other financial habilities (283 3) (247 2708) (253 2)

(681 9) (689 7) (6512) {660 8)

Derivative financial instruments

Held for trading derivatives — swaps'? - - (12 8) (12 8)

Current habilities

Trade and other payables at amortised cost (1,317 0) (1,317 1) (1,800 0) {1,800 0)

Borrowings

Other financial habilines (820 2) (8207) (861 3) (861 3)

Derivative financial mstruments

Held for trading derivatives - swaps on 01 (X)) 04)

Adjustment for accrued interest” 62 - 62 -
(1,126 7) (1,141 2) (1,300 8) (1,316 6)

Notes

(1) Farr values quoted include accrued interest of £6 2 mullion (2011 £6 2 million) m respect of the associated borrowings This
accrued nterest 15 also included n the fair value of trade and other payables The impact on the total fair value of financial
instruments has been removed 1n the adjustment for accrued interest

(2) Includes amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings of £6 7 nullion (2011 £12 8 million owed to subsidiary undertakings)
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18. Financial instruments (continued)

Fair values (continued)

The following tables provide an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to imnal
recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

e Level 1 far value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for 1dentical assets or liabilities,

¢ Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly (1€ as prices) or indirectly
(1¢ derived from prices), and

s Level 3 far value measurements are those dertved from valuation techniques that include mputs for
the asset or hiability that are not based upon observable market data (unobservable)

Group Level 1  lLevel2 Level3 Total

2012 £m £m £m £m

Available for sale financial assets

Investments - 25 - 25

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Denvative financial assets - 6174 - 6174

Financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial liabilities - (1598) - (1598)

Financial habilities designated as fair value through profit or loss - (3059) - (3059
- 1542 - 1542

Group Levelt Level2 Level3 Total

2011 £m fm fm fm

Available for sale financial assets

Investments - 14 - 14

Financial assets at fawr value through profit or loss

Derivative financial assets - 3653 - 3653

Fmancial habilhities at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial habihities - (85 0) - (85 0)

Financial habilities designated as fair value through profit or loss - (286 8) - (286 8)
- 51) - (51)

Company Level | Level2 Level3 Total

2012 £m £m £m £m

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial assets - 138 8 - 138 8

Financial habilities at fair valoe through profit or loss

Derivative financial habilities - on - {on
- 1387 - 138 7

Company Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total

2011 £m £m £m £m

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial assets - 99 1 - 991

Financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial habilities - (132) - (132)
- 859 - 859

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 during the year
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19. Retirement benefit obligations

The group participates in two major funded defined benefit pension schemes in the United Kingdom ~ the
Unmited Utlities Pension Scheme (UUPS) and the Umited Utilines PLC Group section of the Electricity
Supply Pension Scheme (ESPS), both of which are closed to new employees The assets of these schemes
are held in trust funds independent of the group’s finances

The last actuarial valuations of UUPS and ESPS were carried out as at 31 March 2010 These valuations
have been updated to take account of the requirements of IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ in order to assess
the position at 31 March 2012 by projecting forward from the valuation date and have been performed by
an independent actuary, Mercer Limited

The group made total contributions of £149 7 milhon (2011 £133 0 mithon) to its pension schemes for the
year ended 31 March 2012  The group also continues to pay contributions n respect of the defined
contribution members and wsurance premwums Overall, the group expects to contribute around £50 0
million to us defined benefit schemes in the year ending 31 March 2013

The group also operates a series of unfunded, unregistered retirement benefit schemes The cost of the
unfunded, unregistered retrement benefit schemes 1s included in the total pension cost, on & basis
consistent with 1AS 19 and the assumptions set out below

Information about the pension arrangements for executive directors 1s contained 1n note 3

The main financial assumptions used by the actuary to calculate the defined benefit obiigations of UUPS
and ESPS were as follows

2012 2011

Yopa Yopa
Group and Company
Discount rate 500 550
Expected return on assets —- UUPS 4 45 565
Expected return on assets — ESPS 500 610
Pensionable salary growth and pension increases 325 335
Price inflation 325 335

The current hife expectancies at age 60 underlying the value of the accrued liabilities for the schemes are

2012 2011
years years
Group and Company
Retired member - male 265 251
Non-retired member — male (currently aged 45) 283 266
Retired member - female 298 289
Non-retired member — female (currently aged 45) 317 304

Current studies continue to show faster rates of life expectancy improvement than had previously been
forecast Studies have also illustrated that mortality rates vary significantly according to the demographics
of the schemes’ members These factors have been considered in order to vpdate the hfe expectancies
disclosed above and the resulting calculation of the defined benefit pension obligations of the group during
the year
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19. Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

At 31 March, the fair value of the schemes’ assets and habilities recognised in the statement of financial
position were as follows

Schemes’ Schemes’
assets 2012 assets 2011
% £m % £m
Group
Equities 149 3154 341 5851
Other non-equity growth assets 96 2035 - -
Gilts 20 41 6 25 437
Bonds 584 1,233 0 46 6 8006
Other 151 3195 16 8 288 5
Total fair value of schemes’ assets 1000 2,113 0 100 0 1,717 9
Present value of defined benefit obligattons (2,205 0) (1,9129)
Net retirement benefit obligations (92 (195 0)
Schemes’ Schemes’
assets 2012 assets 2011
% £m % £m
Company
Equities 194 1385 391 2407
Other non-equity growth assets 125 893 - -
Gilts 20 14 1 60 366
Bonds 520 3715 4273 2605
Other 14 1 0 6 126 778
Total far value of schemes’ assets 1000 7140 1000 6156
Present value of defined benefit obligations (765 1) 6677
Net retirement benefit obligations (51 1) (521)

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on asset assumptions, the group considered the current
level of expected returns on risk-free investments, the historical level of the rsk premium associated with
the other asset classes in which the portfolio 1s invested and the expectations for future returns of each asset
class The expected return for each asset class was then weighted based upon the actual asset allocation to
develop the expected long-term rate of return on asset assumptions for the portfolio The group’s actual
return on the schemes’ assets was a gamn of £319 3 million (2011 £134 9 million) and the company’s
actual return on the schemes” assets was a gamn of £93 7 million (2011 £32 9 milhon gain)

The assets as at 31 March 2012, in respect of the UUPS, included in the breakdown above, have been
allocated to each asset class based upon the return the assets are expected to achieve and not based upon
the physical assets held The reason for this being that the UUPS has entered into a variety of derivative
transactions 1n order to change the return charactenistics of the physical assets held and in order to reduce
undesirable market and liability risks

The ‘Other’ element of the portfolio is set aside for collateral purposes linked to the derivative contracts
entered into, as described above The collateral portfolio, in addwion 1o providing sufficient liquidity to
matntain the derivative transactions, 1s expected to achieve a return in excess of LIBOR
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19. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
At the start of the year (1,912 9) (2,182 2) 6677) (393 0)
Interest cost on pension schemes’ obligations (103 8) (1126) (36 1) (31 1)
Actuarial losses (243 1) (70 5) (86 3) (34 6)
Curtailments/settlements
arising on reorganisation (12) 3921 07 02)
arising on amendment of pension obligations - - - 29
Member contributions (6 8) 70 (05) 06)
Benefits paid 76 1 828 259 239
Current service cost (13 3) (154) (11 (an
Business combinations - - - (2339
At the end of the year (2,205 0) (1,912 9) (765 1) (6677

At 31 March 2012, £8 7 million (2011 £7 6 million) of the group’s and company’s defined benefit
obligations related to unfunded, unregistered benefit plans

Movements 1n the fair value of the schemes’ assets were as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £fm

At the start of the year 1,7179 1,910 9 6156 3606
Expected return on pension schemes’ assets 100 5 109 1 360 309
Actuanial gains 2188 258 577 20
Member contributions 68 71 05 06
Benefits paid (76 1} (82 8) (259) (23 9)
Curtailments/settlements arising on reorganisation (4 6} {3852) (4 6) (55)
Company contributions 149 7 1330 347 621
Business combinations - - - 188 8
At the end of the year 2,1130 1,717 9 7140 6156

93




Umited Utilities PLC
E ... e

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

19. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The net pension expense before taxation recognised in the mcome statement i respect of the defined
benefit schemes 1s summarised as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Current service cost (13 3) (119) (1) (10
Curtailments/settlements arising on reorganisation (54) (3 4) (35) @79
Pension expense charged
to operating profit (18 7) (153) 4 6) 49 0)
Expected return on schemes’ assets 100 5 1022 360 309
Interest on schemes’ obligations (103 8) (106 0) (3oe1) 311
Pension expense charged to investment
income and finance expense (see note 6) 33 (3% on 0 2)
Net pension expense charged
before taxation (22 0) (19 1) 47 (49 2)

Defined benefit pension costs excluding curtaitments/settlements arising on reorgarusation included within
employee benefit expense were £13 3 million (2011 £11 9 million) comprising current service costs Total
post-employment benefits expense excluding curtailments/settlements arising on reorganisation charged to
operating profit of £17 5 muhon (2011 £17 1 million) comprise the defined benefit costs described above
of £13 3 milhion (2011 £11 9 million) and defined contribution pension costs of £4 2 milhon (2011 £52
million) (See note 3}

Company defined benefit pension costs excluding curtailments/settlements ansing on reorganisation
inciuded within employee benefit expense were £1 1 milhon (2011 £1 1 milhen) comprising current
service costs Total company post-employment benefits expense excluding curtailments/settlements ansing
on reorgamsation charged to operating profit of £1 1 mullion (2001 £2 5 million) comprise the defined
benefit costs described above of £1 1 mullion (2011 £1 1 million) and defined contribution pension costs of
£ml (2011 £1 4 mllion)
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19. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Group Company
2012 2011 202 2011
£m £m £m £m
Discontinued operations
Current service cost - (35 - -
Curtaitment/settlements anising on reorganisation - 30 - -
Pension expense charged
to operating profit (sec note 4) - (05) - -
Expected return on penston schemes’ assets - 69 - -
Interest on pension schemes’ obligations - (6 6) - -
Net pension mterest income credited to
investment income and finance expense - 03 - -
Curtailment/settlement arising on disposal and
(charged)/credited to profit on disposal of
discontinued operations (see note 8) {4 73 04 -
Net pension (expense)/income (charged)/
credited before taxation (0 4) 71 04) -

The reconcihiation of the opening and closing net pension obligation included in the statement of financial
posttion 1s as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m

At the start of the year (1950 (271 3) 521) (324)

Expense recognised 1n the income

statement - continuing operations (22 0) (19 1) a7 (49 2)
(Expense)income recognised n the income

statement - discontinued operations 04 71 (04) -

Contributions pard 1497 1330 347 621

Actuarial losses gross of taxation 24 3) @4 (28 6) (32 6)

At the end of the year 920) (1950) 1 (52 1)

Included n the 2012 group contributions paid of £149 7 million was an accelerated deficit reparr
contributton of £100 0 million and an £8 8 million inflation funding mechanism payment to UUPS Details
of the mflation mechamism entered into by UUPS with the company as part of a pension de-risking
strategy, are included within the 2011 Report and Financial Statements  Included within the 2011 group
contributions patd of £133 0 million were lump sum payments of £31 8 million 1n relation to the disposal
of the non-regulated activities and £16 8 million 1n relation to the bulk transfer from the schemes to Welsh
Water Dwr Cymru’s pension arrangements, following the termination of the Welsh Water contract

Actuanal gans and losses are recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income At 31 March
2012, a cumulative pre-taxation loss of £289 5 mullion (2012 £265 2 million) had been recorded directly in
the statement of comprehensive income for the group and a cumutative loss of £148 0 million (2011
£119 4 million) for the company had been recorded directly n the statement of comprehensive income
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19. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
The history of the schemes for the current and prior years 1s as follows

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

£fm £fm £m £m £m
Group
Present value of defined benefit obligations (2,205 0) (1,9129) (2,1822) (1,696 9) (1,964 4)
Fair value of schemes’ assets 21130 1L,7179 1,9109 14838 11,8632
Net retirement benefit obligations (920) (1950) (2713) (2131) (1012)
Experience adjustments on schemes’ liabilities (330) 252 18 B89 238
Experience adjustments on schemes’ assets 2188 258 3652 (4964) (2399)
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
Company
Present value of defined benefit obligations (7651) (6677) (3930) (3032) (3614)
Fair value of schemes’ assets 7140 6156 360 6 2835 346 0
Net retirement benefit oblhigations &18)) 52 (324) (s (154)
Experience adjustments on schemes’ habilities (t10) (127 - 20 16 4
Experience adjustments on schemes’ assets 577 20 703 @10y (686)

Defined contribution pension costs

The schemes also include a defined contribution section which constitutes around two per cent of the total
asset value

During the year, the group made £4 2 million (2011 £5 2 million) of contributions (see note 3) to defined
contribution schemes relating to contmuing operations and £ml (2011 £99 mulhion) relating to
discontinued operations, which are 1ncluded in armiving at operating profit  Inciuded within contributions
n respect of discontinued operations 1n the prior year were £5 9 mullion n relation to the Umted Utihities
Electricity Services Limited section of the Electricity North West Group of the ESPS  The 2011
contributions included £5 9 mullion cash contributions to United Utiliies Electricity Services Limited,
which was disposed of during 2011  Further details of this scheme are included within note 19 of the 2011
Report and Financial Statements

The company made £0 9 mllion (2011 £1 4 nullion) of contributions to defined contribution schemes
These amounts were recharged to Umited Utilities Water PLC as they relate to services provided to United
Utthities Water PLC by employees of the company
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20. Deferred tax liabilities/(assets)

The following are the major deferred tax habilities and assets recognised by the group and company, and

the movements thereon, during the current and prior year

Accelerated Retirement
tax benefit
depreciation obligations Other Total
£fm £fm £m £m
Group
At l Apnl 2010 1,461 7 (76 0) (30 3) 1,3554
(Credited)/charged to the income statement 897 343 08 (54 6)
Credited to equity - (11 6) on (7
Disposals (see note 8) 40 26 54 40
At 31 March 2011 1,368 0 (50 7) (24 2) 1,293 1
(Credited)/charged to the income statement (78 1) on 16 {76 6)
Charged to equity - 287 - 287
At 31 March 2012 1,289 9 22 1) (22 6) 1,2452
Accelerated Retirement
tax benefit
depreciation obligations Other Total
£m £m £m £m
Company
At | April 2010 (0 1) o1 07 99)
Charged/{credited) to the income statement - 40 (15 1) (11 1)
Credited to equity - 85 - 85
At 31 March 2011 (0 1) (13 6) (158) (29 5)
Charged to the income statement - 01 105 106
Charged to equity - 12 - 12
At 31 March 2012 1) {123) (53) (77

Certain deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset 1n accordance with 1AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’

A deferred tax asset has been recogmised 1n the company’s statement of financial position as the group 15
profit making and as such, 1t 15 anticipated that when the deferred tax assets reverse it will be possible to
swrrender any losses arising as group relief
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21. Provisions

Group Company

Restructuring Other Total Restructuring Other Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

At i April 2010 186 352 538 53 25 78

Charged/(credited) to the

income statement 98 239 337 (50) (53) (10 3)

Utilised 1n the year (24 2) (21 6) (45 8) 14 33 47

Disposals (see note 8) (02) (177 (179 - - -

At 31 March 2011 40 198 238 17 05 22
Charged/(credited) to the income

statement 26 (39 (13) ol (0 3) (02)

Utilised 1n the year {60) (6 2) (122) (16) - (16)

At 31 March 2012 06 97 103 02 02 04

The restructuring provision as at 31 March 2012 and 3t March 2011 relates to severance costs as a result of
group reorgamsation Other provisions principally relate to contractual and legal claims agamst the group
and represent management’s best estimate of the value of settlement and costs, the timing 1s dependent
upon the resolution of the relevant legal claims

Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows

Group Company
Restructuring Other Total Restructuring Other Total
£m £m £m £m £fm £m
At 31 March 2012
Non-current - 40 40 - - -
Current 06 57 63 02 02 04
06 97 103 02 02 04
At 31 March 2011
Non-current - 93 93 - - -
Current 40 105 145 17 05 22
40 198 238 17 05 22
22, Trade and other payables
Group
2012 2011
£m £m
Non-current
Deferred grants and contributions 3665 241 1
Other creditors 15 87
3780 249 8

The company has no non-current trade and other payables
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22, Trade and other payables (continued)

Group Comgany
2012 2011 2012 011
£m £m £m £m
Current

Trade payables 402 397 02 33
Amounts owed to ultimate parent undertaking 06 - - 01

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Group tax relief payable - - 281 395
Other - - 1,2757 1,730 1
Other tax and social secunity 44 44 - 07
Deferred grants and contributions 69 67 - -
Other creditors 25 29 28 29
Accruals and deferred mcome 3913 3793 102 23 4
4459 4330 1,3170 1,800 0

The average credit pertod taken for trade purchases s 29 days for the group (2011 31 days) At 31 March
2012, no average credit period has been calculated for the company due to the company no tenger making
external purchases (2011 43 days)

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value at both
31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011

Deferred grants and contributions
Re-presegtgd;"
]

2012

£m £m
Group
At the start of the year 2478 182 6
Cash received during the year 130 127
Transfers of assets from customers 120 4 598
Credited to income statement — revenue (see note 1) (09 0 4)
Credited to the income statement — other operating expenses (see note 4) 69 6
At the end of the year 3734 247 8

* The comparatives have been re-presented to show transfer of assets from customers of £59 8 mullion separately (2011 previously
incfuded within amounts received dunng the year}

Deferred grants are those amounts recerved under government grant schemes

23. Sharcholders’ equity

2012 2011
£m £m

Group
Share capital 8818 881 8
Share premium account 1,430 0 1,430 0
Revaluation reserve 158 8 158 8
Cumulanve exchange reserve (E10)] G
Retained earnings 980 1 664 0
3,4457 3,1315

The revaluation reserve reflects the revaluation of infrastructure assets to fair value on transition to IFRS

2012 201t
£m £m

Company
Share capital 8818 881 8
Share premium account 1,4300 1,430 0
Retamed earnings 26137 2,523 7
49255 4,8355
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23. Shareholders’ equity (continued)

As permitted by section 408 of the Compames Act 2006, the company has not presented its own income
statement The amount of group profit for the financial year dealt with 1n the company’s income statement
15 £112 1 milbion (2011 £247 4 mullion profit} after accounting for dividends recesved from subswdiary
undertakings of £317 0 mulion (2011 £1,783 5 million) and impairment of investments of £18 3 mullion
(2011 £1,501 7 mallion) (see note 13)

24. Share capital

2012 2012 2011 2011
Company number £ number £
Issued, called up and fully pad
Ordinary shares of 100 0 pence each 881,787,478 881,787,478 881,787,478 881,787,478
Deferred A shares of 100 0 pence each 1 ] 1 1

881,787,479 881,787,479 881,787,479 881,787479

The company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income The deferred A share
carries no vottng rights nor a right to fixed income

25. Operating lease commitments

Plant and Plant and

Property  equipment Property  equipment

Group 2012 2012 2011 2011

Commitments under non-canceltable operating £m £m £m £m
leases due

Within one year 33 08 36 07

In the second to fifth years inclusive 88 06 119 05

After five years 2523 - 2490 -

264 6 14 2645 12

In respect of the group’s commitment to significant property leases, there are no contingent rentals payable,
or restrictions on dividends, debt or further leasing imposed by these lease arrangements Wherever
possible, the group ensures that it has the benefit of security of tenure where this 1s required by operational
and accommodation strategles Escalation of rents 1s via rent reviews at agreed intervals

Plant and Plant and

Property  equipment Property  equipment

Company 2012 2012 2011 2011

Commitments under non-cancellable operating £m £m £m £m
leases due

Within one year 05 - 04 01

In the second to fifth years inclusive 03 - 07 01

After five years i - - -

09 - i1 02
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26. Related party transactions

Group

Transactions between the company and 1ts subsidiaries, which are related parties, ave been eliminated on

consohidation and are not disclosed in this note

Trading transactions
The following transactions were carried out with the group’s jont ventures

Sales of services

2012 2011
£m £m
Joint ventures 11 4472

Purchases of goods
and services

2012 2011
£m £m
03 95

Amounts owed
by related parties

Ameounts owed
to related parties

2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Joint ventures (see notes 15, 22) 10 27 - -

Included within the comparatives m the table above are amounts relating to entities disposed of during the
year ended 31 March 2011

Sales of services to related parties were on the group’s normal trading terms

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in accordance with normal credit terms The
group has 1ssued guarantees of £5 4 milion (2011 £5 9 milhon) to 1ts jomnt ventures (see note 13)

No allowance has been made for doubtful receivables in respect of the amounts owed by related parties
(2011 £0 3 miilion) No expense has been recognised for bad and doubtful receivables in respect of the
amounts owed by related parties (2011 £nil)

Details of transactions with key management are disclosed in note 3

Non-trading transactions
The following transactions were carried out with the group’s ultimate parent undertaking, United Utihties

Group PLC
Interest receivable Interest payable
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Ulumate parent undertaking 349 2906 - -
Amounts owed Amounts owed
by related parties to related parties
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m fm
Ultimate parent undertaking 1,7352 1,5019 338 336
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26. Related party transactions (continued)

Company
The company receives dividend income, pays and receives mterest and recharges costs to and from
subsidiary undertakings and its ultimate parent company 1n the normal course of business

Total dividend income received during the year amounted to £317 0 mithion (2011 £1,783 5 million), total
mnterest receivable during the year from subsidiary undertakings was £4 8 million (2011 £17 0 muthion),
total far value gains during the year from subsidiary undertakings was £23 5 milhion (2011 £26 2 million
loss) and total recharges were £29 0 million (2011 £75 5 million) In addition, total interest payable
durimg the year from the ultimate parent company was £0 1 million (2011 £25 6 million receivable)
Amounts outstanding at 31 March 2012 between the parent company, subsidiary undertakings and ultimate
parent undertaking are provided i notes 15, 17, 20 and 22

The company guaranteed intra-group leans made by subsidiary undertakings of £343 9 million (2011
£343 9 million) Balances will be settled in accordance with normal credit terms An allowance for
doubtful recervables of £87 3 mullion (2011 £80 6 million) has been made for amounts owed by subsidiary
undertakings In the year ended 31 March 2012, an expense of £8 1 million was recorded 1n respect of bad
or doubtful recervables due from subsidiary undertakings (2011 £2 2 million) (see note 15)

The company has a £400 miilion intercompany nterest rate swap with United Utihties Water PLC witha 5
year matunty date up to 31 March 2015, as part of the 2010-2015 regulatory hedging programme During
the year the company received net interest of £4 3 milhion (2011 £1 6 million) and £i9 5 million was
credited through the income statement (2011 £12 8 million charge)

27. Cash generated from operations

Group Company
Re-presented'”
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Continumg operations
Profit/(loss) before taxation 3153 3566 1126 2357
Adjustment for investment income and finance expense 276 2 2236 67N 83)
Operating profit/(loss) 5915 5802 1059 2274
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2780 2583 - -
Amortisation of other intangible assets 198 322 - -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 55 27 - -
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets 26 28 - -
Amortisation of deferred grants and contributions 69) 69) - -
Equity-settied share-based payments (credit)/charge 12 v - -
Other non-cash movements on - (105 7} (24 6)
Changes in working caputal
Decrease/(increase) i inventories on 21 - -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (240 9) (22 8) 3l46 43 1
(Decrease)/increase in provisions and payables (157 8) (806) (249 3) 771
Cash generated from continuing operations 492 8 7679 655 3230

(1) The comparatives for the group have been re-presented to show amortisation of deferred grants and contributions separately
(2011 previously included within (decrease)increase 1 provision and payables), along with the reclassification of grants and
contributtons received which were previously included in decrease in provisions and payables, now shown separately on the
consolidated statement of cashflows, within imvesting activities
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27. Cash generated from operations (continued)

(2) The group has recerved property, plant and equipment of £120 4 mulhion (2011 £59 8 mitlion) in exchange for the provision of
future goods and services {sec accounting polictes, notes 1 and 22) Matenial non-cash transactions for the company during the year
ended 31 March 2012 mnclude disposals of the company’s investment in its subsidiaries Untted Utilities Investments No 2 Limuted
(£125 9 milhion) and Umted Utihties Financial Services Limited (£54 9 million) and the impairment of NB Telecom (IOM) Limited
(£17 3 nullion) offset by non-cash setiled dividends received from United Utihiies Investment No 2 Lumited of £125 0 mulhion,
United Uthues Financial Services Limited £78 Om and Uruted Utthities Investment Holdings Limited £107 0 mullion  There were no
further matenal non-cash transactions during the year Material non-cash transactions for the company 1n the prier year included
impairment of the company’s mvestment in 1ts subsichary Untted Unlitics One Limited (£1,500 7 million, see note 13) offset by non-
cash sctiled dividends recetved from United Utihities One Linited of £1,517 5 mullion

In the prior year, the company acquered £1,499 8 mithion of ordinary shares m United Uulities Investment (No 7) Limited by transfer

of an inter-company receivable balance (see note 13) .

in the prior year, the company increased its investments by £1,187 9 mullion 1n United Utilities Employee Share Trust, £296 9 million
i Unuted Utillines (Jersey) Investments (No 6 Limited and £15 0 rmllion in United Utilities Investments (No 5) Limited, following
its transfer of 476 million ordinary shares i Umied Utiliies North West PLC to United Utilities Investment Partnerstups (No 2} LP
(see note 13)

28. Contingent habilities

The group has entered 1nte performance guarantees as at 31 March 2012, where a financial limit has been
specified of £85 2 million (2011 £104 5 mullion)

The company guaranteed loans of group undertakings up to a maximum of £1,4399 milhon (2011
£1,246 1 million), including £1,086 0 million (2011 £902 2 million} relating to United Utihties Water
PLC’s loans from the European Investment Bank and £343 9 million (2011 £343 9 mulion) relating to
mntra-group loans made by subsidiary undertakings

The company has entered into performance guarantees as at 31 March 2012, where a financial hmit has
been specified of £77 6 million (2011 £94 6 mullion)

29. Events after the reporting period

There are no events arising after the reporting date that require recogmtion or disclosure 1n the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

30. Ultimate parent undertaking

The company’s immediate and ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s United Utilities Group
PLC, a company incorporated 1n Great Britain

The smallest group in which the results of the company are consohdated 15 that headed by Umited Utilities
PLC

The largest group in which the results of the company are consolidated 1s that headed by United Utilines
Group PLC The consolidated accounts of this group are available to the public and may be obtained from
The Company Secretary, United Utilities Group PLC, Haweswater House, Lingley Mere Business Park,
Lingley Green Avenue, Great Sankey, Warrington, WAS 3LP
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